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Net retail revenue up 3.2% y-o-y to 70.3 billion rubles

Market share increase up to 13% in the CE market

Gross profit 25.3%

EBITDA margin 4.5%

177 stores in 72 cities with a total store area 467,000 sq m 
and total sales area 349,000 sq m as of 31.12.2009

22 new stores opened
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travel

music

ThE widEsT sELECTiON Of gOOds AT M.vidEO givEs yOU  
AN UNLiMiTEd fREEdOM Of ChOiCE, iMPREssiONs, NEw AsPiRATiONs  
ANd wishEs

Car Audio MP3 and Radio deck
Peak power  52 watts x 4 channels

Portable GPS device 
4.3'' touch-screen display 

Pocket PC 
CPU 624 Mhz

Freedom

communication
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In 2009 M.video was the only nationwide con-
sumer electronics retailer, who achieved positive 
dynamics and sales growth. While the market 
lost more than 30% of its value as compared to 
the previous year, our top line growth was more 
than 3% for retail revenue.

We were strongly committed to our expansion in 
the Russian market in 2009. While many of the 
consumer electronics networks closed stores 
and experienced financing difficulties during the 
year, M.video opened 22 new stores and contin-
ued to roll out its successful store format to the 
regions of Russia, adding 7 new cities to geo-
graphical coverage.

The breakthrough performance in 2009 allowed 
us to double our market share in both, the na-
tional competition and in the specialized net-
works segment.

Our second major achievement was that we 
were able to increase our Gross Profit by 30 ba-
sis points, to 25.3% of sales.

Probably the most impressive highlight of our 
year was that due to our effective management 
of the Company’s balance sheet and working 

capital M.Video achieved a net cash position of 
more than 6 billion Russian Rubles at the end of 
2009 as compared to the net debt position the 
year before.

The economic circumstances in 2009 led to the 
reduction in traffic and number of purchases. 
Customers became more price-sensitive but 
their preferences remained with high quality, 
branded products. The Russian households con-
sider consumer electronics and large home ap-
pliances as an investment and M.video stores 
have always been offering the widest selection 
of top branded products, which our target cus-
tomers choose to buy. As the economy recovers 
we should be able to capitalize on this advan-
tage and to increase our revenue.

To achieve that we will support our best in class 
management team and well-trained and moti-
vated sales consultants in the stores. M.video al-
ways has high commitments to invest in people 
and provide new job opportunities in the cities 
and regions where we operate.

Even in challenging times we subscribe to the 
idea that a customer-centric approach brings 
more benefits to a retailer.  We work closely with 
our suppliers to maintain availability of goods 
in shelves but by communicating with our cus-
tomer we understand the demand that allows us 
to develop further our in-house selling technolo-
gies and service propositions.

In 2010 we will continue to provide innovative 
products and services to our customers in all our 
locations, open new stores and expand our retail 
network while putting special emphasis on the 

Peter Györffy,
Chairman of the Board  
of Directors

Alexander Tynkovan 
Chief Executive Officer

Statement from Chairman 
and CEO 1

Peter Györffy Alexander Tynkovan 

DEAR shAREhOLDERs Of OJsC “COMPANy 
M.VIDEO”, WE ARE VERy PROUD TO hIghLIghT 
OUR COMPANy’s ACCOMPLIshMENTs IN ThE 
COMPETITIVE AND ChALLENgINg yEAR IN ThE 
RUssIAN CONsUMER ELECTRONICs AND hOME 
APPLIANCEs MARkET

development in such pioneering areas as online 
sales to ensure that our internet business satis-
fies those customers who prefer to shop using 
this channel.

finally, we would like to thank everyone for their 
support in 2009, and we look forward to continu-
ing success in 2010.
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TrEnDy DEsIGn, EAsy To usE, hIGh DurABIlITy AnD BEsT vAluE for monEy – ThEsE 
ARE ThE fEATUREs whiCh OUR CUsTOMERs APPRECiATE ThE MOsT ANd whiCh bRiNg ThEM 
A REAL PLEAsURE Of ENJOyiNg ThE CONsUMER ELECTRONiCs ThEy PURChAsE fROM Us

Hi-Fi Audio system
Peak power  65 watts x 2 channels

music

communications
Mobile phone
EgsM 900/1800/1900,  
3.2 MP Camera

All-in-one desktop PC
CPU 3.06 ghz, RAM 4gb

knowledge

Pleasure
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Vision

M.video is the best place to shop for consumer 
electronics in Russia.

Mission

To build up an efficient consumer electronics busi-
ness in Russia:

° to make high-quality consumer electronics 
goods available to consumers with high quality 
service;

° to ensure career opportunities for company 
employees;

° to achieve positive growth in company opera-
tions and profitability.

Strategy

Our primary business objective is to increase 
shareholder value through increased revenue and 
operating margins and, by focusing on our com-
petitive strengths, to increase our market share in 
Russia by becoming the number one retailer in the 
cities where we operate. in order to achieve these 
objectives, we are implementing a strategy that 
includes the following key elements:

° increasing market share based on our success-
ful format;

° Enhancing our key brand advantages;

° focus on profitability.

Company Philosophy 2
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Company Background

We opened our first retail store in the centre of mos-
cow in 1993 and as of the end of 2009 we operated 
177 stores in 72 cities in selected regions of Russia. 
we also operate two online internet stores. M.video 
offers its customers approximately 20,000 sKus of 
audio/video, digital, small and large home applianc-
es, media and entertainment products as well as 
accessories. we sell brand name products as well as 
some exclusive goods. m.video generally operates 
its stores under a uniform format and a specially 
designed store concept to provide customers with 

approximately 2,000 square meters of easy-to-
navigate shopping space that also offers informa-
tion about products and upcoming trends.

In addition to providing an efficient retail store format and 
customer-friendly store concept aligned with the brand 
perception, M.video believes that it has distinguished 
itself by offering its customers a wide assortment of 
quality and innovative products and outstanding cus-
tomer service whether through the product knowledge 
of the sales people, additional service agreement or our 
24-hour customer care centre.

In november 2007 m.video became the first pub-
licly traded company in the domestic consumer 
electronic retail sector; its shares are traded on both 
russian rTs and mICEX exchanges.

3

M.vidEO is A LEAdiNg CONsUMER 
ELECTRONiCs ANd hOME APPLiANCE RETAiLER 
iN ThE RUssiAN fEdERATiON

2009  
number  
of stores

Location

41 Moscow (with Moscow area)

16 saint-Petersburg

5 N.Novgorod, Rostov-on-don, yekaterinburg

4 Chelyabinsk, kazan, krasnodar

3 kemerovo, Novosibirsk, Perm, samara, Tyumen, 
Ufa, voronezh, volgograd

2
barnaul, Lipetsk, krasnoyarsk, kursk, Nizhnevar-
tovsk, Novorossiysk, Omsk, Orenburg, Ryazan, 
surgut, saratov, stavropol, vologda

1

Almetyevsk, Armavir, Arkhangelsk, Astrakhan, bry-
ansk, Cheboksary, Cherepovets, gubkin, ivanovo, 
izhevsk, khanty-Mansiysk, kostroma, kurgan, 
Makhachkala, Magnitogorsk, Naberezhnye Chel-
ny, nalchik, nefteyugansk, nizhnekamsk, nizhny 
Tagil, Novokuznetsk, Novotroitsk, Nyagan, Orel, 
Penza, Pskov, Pyatigorsk, salavat, sochi, stary Os-
kol, sterlitamak, Tomsk, Tambov, Taganrog, Toly-
atti, Ulyanovsk, vladikavkaz, vladimir, volgodonsk, 
volzhsky, yaroslavl, yoshkar-Ola, Zheleznogorsk

Total : 177 Total cities: 72

M.video locations
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travel

impressions Laptop PC
4gb ddR2 memory, built-in webcam

iT ALL sTARTs wiTh A dREAM. ALL hUMAN’s ACCOMPLishMENTs, iNvENTiONs ANd 
disCOvERiEs bEgiN wiTh A dREAM. A dREAM is ThE fiRsT sTEP wE MAkE. M.vidEO 
hELPs TO MAkE This fiRsT sTEP ANd bRiNg A dREAM CLOsER TO LifE

Portable GPS device 
bluetooth technology, microsd 
media card slot

communication

Pocket PC 
windows Mobile v.6.1

Dream
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Most national retail operators were forced to support 
sales volumes and spur traffic and attachment rates 
in their stores.

Trough an increase in promotions M.video continued 
to work wit h supp liers to highlight value dri ven off 
ers to its cust omers .

The Russian consumer electronics and home appli-
ances market in 2009 dropped year-on-year more 
than 30% as estimated by the various research. 
M.video was the only nationwide consumer electron-

ics retailer which was able to achieve positive sales 
dynamics and retail revenue growth in 2009. Our 
retail revenue growth of 3.2% was achieved through 
the opening of 22 new stores offsetting the negative 
11.6% like-for-like and closing of 2 stores.

in troublesome market conditions we also man-
aged  to increase sales of  accessories and Addi-
tional services Agreements (AsA) which are wildly 
important for our business in terms of gross profit 
development.

in 2009 more than 19 million transactions were 
made in the M.video network. we estimate that ap-
proximately 20% of store visitors made a purchase.  
The average transaction value in 2009 was around 
4,300 Rubles, including vAT @18%.

The typical seasonality of our business was seri-
ously distorted in 2009  due to the national cur-

2009 wAS A TREMENDOuSly CHAllENGING 
yEAR FOR THE MOST OF RuSSIAN RETAIl 
COMPANIES AS CuSTOMERS ’ BEHAvIOR 
wAS HEAvIly INFluENCED By THE SEvERE 
ECONOMIC CIRCuMSTANCES.

Operational Performance 
Review

M.video retail indicators growth 
in 2009, %

Retail revenue and like-for-like 
dynamics in 1Q-4Q 2009, %
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Operational Performance Review

rency devaluation in the very beginning of the year. 
The first months of 2009 showed extreme sales 
growth when Russian customers were pushed to 
buy consumer goods worrying of the Russian rouble 
purchasing power. Thus the demand shifted  from 
the 2nd quarter to the 1st quarter and the seasonal 
element was recaptured only when the currency 
exchange rate stabilized.

The russian economy suffered from the global re-
cession and as a result some aspects of the custom-
ers’ behavior changed in 2009: people continued 
to shop for quality goods but became more price 
sensitive and patient in their purchases. At the same 
time we  found that the consumers’ preferences re-
mained with high quality, added value products as 
they did not downgrade to private label brands. Tra-
ditionally Russian households consider consumer 
electronics and large home appliances as an invest-
ment and m.video stores have always been offering 
the widest selection of top branded products which 
our target customers choose to buy.

The like-for-like sales for the year were down due 
to a decrease in the traffic which led to a decline in 
number of transactions. This was offset slightly by 
an increase in the average check. The biggest like-
for-like decrease happened in large industrial cities 
and one industry cities were the economy lacked 
diversification. 

in such market circumstances a customer-centric 
approach brings more benefits to a retailer.  Availa-
bility of goods in shelves, communication with eve-
ry customer, offering various accessories allowed 
us to increase the average basket and UPT (units 
per ticket) in 2009. we also established a separate 
business unit responsible for end of life goods sales 

and introduced a new service offer via a brand-new 
in-store branch, Army of botanics which we piloted 
in st.Petersburg stores and are planning to roll-out  
to Moscow in 2010.

Also by the year end 2009 M.video announced it 
would discontinue its wholesale channel as we 
did not  require these sales to increase purchase 
volumes or to give us insight into the regional de-
mand.

Expansion of the network

we opened a total of 22 new stores in 2009 with 
3 in Moscow and 19 in the regions, adding 7 new 
cities to our geographical coverage. we also closed 
2 stores in 2009 due to the low efficiency of those 
stores.

our store profile includes 147 of our stores in shop-
ping malls and 30 stand alone destinations. we 
lease 155 of our stores operated own 22 stores.

our proven model for expansion is based on our 
uniform, easy to roll-out store concept with an av-
erage store size of 2,000+ sq m of selling space 
(2,500+ sq m of total space). Generally, we look for 
high average disposable income and high density 
of population and defined traffic zones. Another 
important factor is significant construction, either 
in new shopping malls or in residential develop-
ments.

The average time it takes us to open a store is 3-5 
months, and we invest 55 million rubles in each 
store on fixtures, lease agreements and other pre-
opening costs.

* Like-for-like (LfL) data is based upon a comparison of stores 
open at January 1, 2009 and not closed for more than two 
weeks or permanently, or expanded or downsized by >20% of 
total space

Transactions, average ticket and like-for-like* sales dynamics 2009, % 
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in 2009 M.video continued to implement its strat-
egy of increasing the density in the cities where it 
operates to get economies of scale on advertising 
and supply chain costs and to increase our market 
share in those cities. we add a new city when we 
were able to get a profitable store in a good city and/
or to put pressure on our competition in a city where 
they have good sales because we are not present.

for all potential new store locations, we prepare a 
detailed model to analyse the projected revenue, 
the cost structure and calculate the pay-back pe-
riod and internal rate of return. we conduct a care-
ful analysis of available leases on potential stores, 
and decline the location if the price is not right, or 
the return is not sufficient.  As the right premises 
are critical to our success, we take a robust view of 
lease management to ensure continuity of opera-
tions whilst keeping tight control of costs.

due to the economic recession we enjoyed better 
rent rates for the new openings in 2009 as com-
pared to the previous years. we were also able to 
use competitors’ weaknesses and our increased 
negotiation power to talk to the landlords on the 
existing rent rates to obtain various exemptions, 
such as no escalation in rents or rent reductions for 
one or two years in those shopping centers where 
our like-for-like revenue per store decreased.

The recession seriously impacted our ability to ful-
fil our plan of opening 40 stores in the new shop-
ping malls. The commercial real estate sector was 
among the most severely battered industries by 
the economic downfall and thus the pipeline of 
new construction projects reduced significantly. 
As a result the Company reduced its guidance and 
opened 22 stores in 2009. 

Market share and competition

M.video competes with both national and regional 
consumer electronics retailers throughout Russia, 
as well as against niche specialist retailers such as 
computer, telecom and/or photography stores. we 
demonstrated high growth rates in sales due to our 
superior sales technologies and high standards of 
customer service.  

The competitive landscape in the end of 2008 and 
through the whole 2009 opened up more  oppor-
tunities for M.video. while the rest of the consumer 
electronics specialists (CEs) suffered from both 
the recession and some specific internal problems 
and/or financing issues we were able to continue 
the development of our business and substan-
tially increase our share in the market.

As we saw in 2009 the consumer electronics and 
home appliances consumption collapsed and the 
total market reportedly lost more than 30% year-
on-year shrinking to a size even smaller than in 
2007. Meanwhile our total market share grew to 
over 13% based on the several Russian analysts 
estimate of the market size exceeding 600 billion 
RUb. we have also noticed that the consumer elec-
tronics specialists (CEs) share in the total market 
in 2009 increased to capture approximately 50% 
of the total market. M.video estimates its market 
share in the CEs segment is about 26% as com-
pared to 18% in mid 2008.

it is important to note that M.video gained market 
share in most of the product groups and categories 
it operates. 

Rent rates dynamics for the new 
stores opened in 2007-2009
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Operational Performance Review

iN 2009 M.vidEO fOCUsEd ON ThE “A” ANd 
“b” bRANd bUsiNEss ANd wORkEd hARd 
TO REdUCE ThE AMOUNT Of iNvENTORy whiCh 
wAs APPROAChiNg ThE ENd Of LifE.  

Gross margin development

The management of M.video constantly focuses 
on ways to increase retail margins. we target con-
sumers who are prepared to purchase based upon 
quality, design and service. This differentiation and 
focus on high-margin products and products with 
additional value added features brings us addi-
tional benefits with our vendors such as special 
delivery conditions and favourable purchasing 
prices. 

due to the increased market volatility our retail 
margin was under strong downward pressure in 
2009. M.video had to deal with larger than ever 
volumes of promotional sales versus the rest of 
the assortment: the promotion sales share grew 
45% as compared to 2008 reaching 24.5% of 
the total business. we also faced a change in the 
product mix with increased share of low marginal 
products, e.g. strong development of digital ap-
pliances, specifically notebooks, or flat Tv cat-
egory.

A positive element in the overall unfavorable mar-
ket  environment was the extraordinary perform-
ance shown by the Accessories product group, as 
already mentioned, with a strong 15% revenue 
development. Our strategy includes growth in this 
category as one of the key success factors to sup-
port gross margin.

in order to protect our gross margin from the retail 
margin erosion we focused on optimization of our 
purchasing conditions. As a result of that M.video 
was able to improve suppliers bonuses and allow-
ances even though our purchases were not signifi-
cantly higher than for 2008. we also stopped im-
port activities in foreign currency and transferred 
100% of procurement to Russian rubles.

we worked hard on improving stock rotation in 
our network while putting more emphasis on im-
proving stock availability on the best contribution 
and promotional products. At the same time we 
worked closely with our vendors and introduced a 
new world class sales forecast system to support 
the improvement on our sales forecast accuracy 
and purchasing planning as well as starting our 
industry leading CPfR (Collaborative Planning 
forecasting and Replenishment) model with our 
largest suppliers.

in 2009 M.video focused on the “A” and “b” brand 
business and worked hard to reduce the amount of 
inventory which was approaching the end of life.  

Innovation

The consumer electronics industry is developing 
rapidly, heralding the arrival of a host of new tech-
nologies. M.video has always monitored trends in 
the industry and is the first to offer its customers 
access to innovative products. 

Our special attention was focused on the sales 
of the key innovative technology introduced 

Top 5 product categories performance in 2009, %
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in the market in 2009 such as EdgE LEd Tvs. 
we have proven our leadership in bringing new 
technologies into the market through reaching 
our internal targets on selling 10,000 LEd-Tv 
units over the period and establishing a strong 
5% share of lED flat Tvs over the total lCD Tv 
segment.

We were the first CE retailer in the market which 
started micro 4/3 digital cameras sales with an ex-
clusive brand new Panasonic dMC-gf1k camera. 
We also pioneered the offering of the revolution-
ary duo of the wiMAX 4g internet access tools and 
the portable laptops.

In cooperation with microsoft russia we launched 
a retail première of the new Os windows 7 in Mos-
cow in one of our downtown stores.

Supply Chain development

in 2009 M.video approved a distribution strategy 
for 2009-2011 which accumulates and balances 
the ‘interests’ of inventory, Transportation, and 
Location strategies thus ensuring proper product 
distribution within the network.

we manage an inventory of 20,000 items com-
prising 5,000 core products, 5,000 accessories 
and 10,000 media and entertainment products. 
within our uniform store concept, we can vary the 

sales area for different product groups according 
to local customer needs. 

Our stores format and merchandising approach 
provides for allocation of most of goods on the 
shop floor, moving the stock’s ‘center of gravity’ to 
the point of sales (POs). The best solution from the 
efficiency and cost point of view is to concentrate 
the stock in a Central distribution Center (CdC), 
replenishing to the stores on demand, which stipu-
lates for ‘one level’ distribution model, and helps to 
‘shorten the pipeline’. 

At the same we recognized risks of holding all the 
stock in the one ‘point’ as well as anticipated ef-
ficiency losses due to the huge handling volumes 
and high prices for logistics operations in Moscow. 
Thus in 2009 we opened our second Central distri-
bution Center in Nizhny Novgorod which we chose 
for its geographical location and transportation 
and logistics providers availability.

in 2009 our management team put special em-
phasis on the efficiency of the stock management. 
we set up a target for the Procurement group which 
provided for equalizing of our inventories with our 
Payables to get positive impact on the working 
capital. we negotiated special agreements with 
strategic vendors to secure an efficient develop-
ment of the ratio stock vs. AP. 

in 2008 we embarked on a multi-year supply 
Chain Management (sCM) project. sCM is about 
more than just the technical aspects of storing 
and moving our products, it is about demand 
planning, forecasting & replenishment and about 
having the right goods at the right place at the 
right time, therefore reducing inventory levels 

iN COOPERATiON wiTh MiCROsOfT RUssiA 
wE LAUNChEd A RETAiL PREMièRE Of ThE NEw 
Os wiNdOws 7 iN MOsCOw iN ONE Of OUR 
dOwNTOwN sTOREs.
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Operational Performance Review

500 000 m3

300 000 m3

CDC-1
Moscow CDC-2

NN

and out-of-stock in the stores so that sales can 
be maximized. 

in 2009 our supply Chain system improvements 
were driven in two directions, logistic execution 
and sales & purchase planning.

logistic execution stream had been delivering 
business-process optimization and new sAP ERP 
implementation for the following areas: Purchase 
To Pay cycle optimization for traded goods (de-
livered in August 2009) and internal logistics op-
erations from distribution centers to stores and 
in-store stock replenishment (to be delivered in 
2010).

sales & purchase planning stream administered  
optimization of sales forecasting and planning 
process at skU level (delivered in November 2009) 
as well as purchase planning at skU level (to be 
delivered in 2010).

m.video has chosen the Predictix forecasting & 
Planning solution as a basic platform to optimize 
stock and improve stock availability across the 
chain.

The net benefits of the sCm project will be realised 
in future years as we will make significant invest-
ments in the period of 2010-2012.

Committing to customers, 
committing to our staff

we believe that customers’ loyalty is key to our 
success. People want to visit M.video stores be-
cause they know they will get good advice about 

products and accessories, and can find out about 
new trends. our staff will always be available to 
give advice or offer help about what additional 
items are necessary to ensure successful instal-
lation at home. 

Our customers’ loyalty program called ’M.video 
bonus’ was implemented in 2009. The program 
was built  on the basis of the innovative Oracle 
siebel loyalty management CRM-solution. 

we were very proud to see that our customers 
committed to join M.video bonus program proac-
tively. by the year end 2009 the program had 
more than 2 million registered participants; each 
third purchase in our stores were made by M.video 
bonus club member. The program?s participants 
made 5.5 million out of 19.5 million transactions 
in M.video stores in 2009.

M.video bonus loyalty program entered the world-
wide rating of the best implementation practices 
of Oracle Corp. and was also awarded with best 
CRM solution nomination in a prestigious national 
CRM Top Awards competition.

We expanded our successful loyalty management 
experience launching a new co-brand program 
with one of the leading Russian retail banks in the 
end of 2009. M.video bonus MasterCard makes 
purchases more rewarding for customers and al-
lows them to gain award points when shopping 
outside our network.

our customer offering is supported by a 24 hour 
call centre. whether a product has been bought 
from M.video store or not, our consultants and 
technicians can assist consumers with advice on 

The new  distribution model 
introduced in 2009.
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topics ranging from the location and openings 
times of our stores to how to operate and install 
products.

Our employees are part of our competitive advan-
tage. we place a premium on employee recruit-
ment and training to build a strong, team-oriented 
company culture. We provide many different levels 
of training to ensure that sales staff are knowl-
edgeable on our products and current trends. Our 
in-house corporate university helps us to develop 
future store directors and section managers.

While the economy was suffering from the reces-
sion and some businesses and enterprises opted 
to cut staff or reduce salaries m.video invested in 
people and provided more job opportunities in the 
cities and regions where we operate.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As we are one of the largest nationwide net-
works in the consumer electronics and home 
appliances market we realise that the products 
we sell make people’s life more comfortable but 
may have an unpredictable impact on the en-
vironment.

Although our corporate color is red, we are essen-
tially ‘green’ company and carefully assess the im-
pact we will have on the environment, confessing 
careful attitude to the surrounding world.

in March of 2009 M.video joined the worldwide 
campaign ’hour of the Earth’ held under the pa-
tronage of the world wildlife foundation (wwf). 
Light signboards and all Tv screens were switched 
off for one hour in all of our stores across rus-
sia symbolizing our support of the wwf initiative. 
Prior to ’hour of the Earth’ we had promoted the 
initiative with our customers urging them to par-
ticipate. ‘hour of the Earth’ unites almost a billion 
people worldwide and demonstrates public appeal 
to  measures on preservation of the environment 
for future generations. 

in June 2009 we stopped the usage of and cir-
culation of the polyethylene packages in our 
stores aiming at minimization of their harmful 
influence on the environment. We passed to ok-
si-biodecomposed packages. All new packages 
are suitable for storage of consumer products in 
accordance with the EU guide 90/128/EEC. fol-
lowing our initiative the consumption of pack-
ages in our stores decreased eleven times within 
the first three months. The business community 
appreciated our efforts and awarded m.video 
with the ‘social initiative of the year’ nomina-
tion which we won in  the Annual National Retail 
Awards 2009.

we are committed to paying more attention to en-
ergy saving. in december 2009 M.video stopped 
sales of incandescent lamps which may be re-
placed with the new high-quality energy-saving 
lamps. These lamps, on average, consume 80% 

whiLE ThE ECONOMy wAs sUffERiNg fROM 
ThE RECEssiON ANd sOME bUsiNEssEs ANd 
ENTERPRisEs OPTEd TO CUT sTAff OR REdUCE 
sALARiEs M.vidEO iNvEsTEd iN PEOPLE ANd 
PROvidEd MORE JOb OPPORTUNiTiEs iN ThE 
CiTiEs ANd REgiONs whERE wE OPERATE.

2008 2009 % change

headquarters 633 620 (2%)

Call center 123 138 12.2%

E-Commerce 13 19 46.2%

Regional administration 496 536 8%

stores 9,504 9,727 2.3%

TOTAL HEADCOUNT FTE 10,769 11,040 2.5%

Average FTE employee dynamics in 2008-2009
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less energy in comparison with incandescent 
lamps allowing to reduce electricity consump-
tion.

in the end of 2009 M.video joined wwf initiative 
aimed on the conservation of the vanishing Rus-
sian far East tigers. The initiative will be widely 
promoted to our customers throughout the net-
work in 2010.

M.video also runs a charitable foundation “Our 
initiative” which makes donations to a number of 
charities,  orphanages, health care centers and 
educational projects across Russian federation.

Outlook

we will continue to provide innovative products to 
our customers in all our locations to ensure that 
they continue believe that M.video is the best place 
to shop for consumer electronics in Russia.

Our retail team is motivated to increase the number 
of transactions via the conversion rate growth and 
maintain the average basket keeping high sales of 
the accessories and additional services while en-
deavoring growth of UPT.

we plan to open 30 new stores in 2010. The 30 new 
stores are backed with a sufficient pipeline but more 
openings may depend on how fast the real estate 
sector will recover or taking stores from the com-
petition.

Our online business will remain one of the key 
development areas in 2010. Last year we sepa-
rated the retail and internet channels by appoint-

ing a new director in charge of the internet de-
velopment and made some significant changes 
to www.mvideo.ru as our main e-commerce tool.  
we want to ensure that our online business sup-
ports our stores but is also equipped to target 
those customers who prefer to shop using this 
channel.  

After our people, m.video brand is our strongest 
asset. That is why we do not franchise stores, but 
keep direct control through our employees. in this 
way, we can ensure that we apply universal brand 
standards to all our stores, wherever they are lo-
cated.  The M.video brand is underpinned by our 
corporate values; honesty, simplicity, effective-
ness and teamwork.  we succeed because our 
staff share these values and to focus 100% on 
our customers.

600

800

1000

1200

400

200

2006 2007 2008 2009
0

Online business development 
in 2006-2009 (RUB million)

CAgR 23.6%
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A TRANQUiL AMbiENCE ANd COMfORT, fAvORiTE hObbiEs ANd vARiOUs 
homE APPlIAnCEs AnD ElECTronIC EnTErTAInmEnT – All ThIs mAKEs 
ThE hOME A TRULy bELOvEd PLACE

leisure

impressions
3D Blu-Ray Disk Player
built in wi-fi, dolby digital 
Truehd and dTs-hd 
decoders

comfort Air Conditioner 
2.6 kilowatt cooling 
capacity

LED-LCD HDTV
40'' screen, 120 hz refresh rate, 1080 p

Relaxation
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Financial Performance  
Review 5

RUB million (without VAT) 2009 2008 2007

Net revenue 72,507 71,486 52,317

Gross profit 18,360 17,876 11,965

As % of net revenue 25.3% 25.0% 22.9%

operating expenses, net 16,243 15,143 9,881

As % of net revenue 22.4% 21.2% 18.9%

operating profit (EBIT) 2,117 2,733 2,084

As % of net revenue 2.9% 3.8% 4.0%

EbiTdA 3,244 3,596 2,607

As % of net revenue 4.5% 5.03% 4.98%

net profit 783 1,256 649

As % of net revenue 1.08% 1.8% 1.2%

Financial Performance Highlights, 2007-2009

Revenues

overall revenue figures were determined by the 
two key elements, which are LfL sales and sales of 
new stores. As with majority of companies around 
the globe our L4L sales declined due to the world’s 
recession but unlike many other companies we 
continued our expansion and managed to deliver 
overall sales growth.

in 2009 the group continued to focus on the core 
business which is retail trading. by the year end we 
discontinued our wholesale channel as we did not 
require these sales to increase purchase volumes 
or to give us insight into the regional demand.  
Retail revenues accounted for 97% of our total 
revenues in 2009.

Retail sales increased 3.2% to 70.3 billion Rus-
sian rubles (RUb) in 2009 from 68.1 billion RUb in 
2008. This increase was fuelled by the sales from 
additional new stores which outpaced the decline 
in L4L store sales. 

Challenging market conditions and competitive 
pressures resulted in substantial contraction of 
consumer electronics market in 2009. LfL store 
sales declined by 11.6% for the year but this 
should be seen in light of the estimated market 
declined of > 30% over 2009. 

it is important to note that new store sales include 
both stores opened in 2008 that were working for 
the full year in 2009, and the 22 new openings of 
2009. The company believes that the expansion 
program of 2009 was a very good result given the 
reduction in supply of new shopping centers.
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Gross profit
Gross profit increased to 18.4 billion ruB in 2009 
compared with 17.9 billion RUb in 2008.  gross 
margin increased as a percent of revenue by 0.3% 
to 25.3% in 2009 comparing to 25.0% in 2008. The 
increase in the margin was achieved despite the 
decline in the market and the increase in the promo 
activities as the company was able to reduce the 
shrinkage and provision for obsolescence.  The 
company was very focused on the improvements 
in the areas where we felt our actions would have 
an impact on the results.  

Selling, general and administrative 
expenses

our selling, general and administrative expenses 
increased by 3.8% to 16.6 billion RUb in 2009 from 
16.0 billion ruB in 2008. operating expenses in-

creased by 1.2% as a percent of revenue in 2009 
compared to 2.0% in 2008 demonstrating slight 
reduction in growth rates.

Overall sg&A growth is from two main catego-
ries — depreciation and Rent (including utilities).   
both are up as a percentage due to the 2008 stores 
operating throughout the year and the adding of 
new stores in 2009 while the revenues they gener-
ated just offset the l4l sales decline.  With utilities 
the rates were significantly increased in 2009.

Payroll and related taxes is the largest and most 
important expense as most of our 11,000 employ-
ees are customer facing and we rely on customer 
service. The slight decrease in 2009 by 2.1% to 
4.29 billion RUb from 4.39 billion RUb in 2008 
was achieved despite operating more stores. The 
company determined that it is better to look at the 
workloads of the existing employees and where 
possible, when an employee left the company, 

In millions of RUB and as a % of Total Revenues

Year ended

31 December 2009 31 December 2008

Payroll and related taxes 4,292 5.9% 4,386 6.1%

lease expense 3,310 4.6% 3,041 4.3%

Advertising and promotional expenses 2,493 3.4% 2,462 3.4%

Transportation & warehouse services 1,793 2.5% 2,171 3.0%

depreciation & amortization and impairment loss 1,127 1.6% 863 1.2%

Other* 3,600 5.0% 3,088 4.3%

TOTAL 16,615 22.9% 16,011 22.4%

* Other includes: utilities, security services, service centre, repairs and 
maintenance, bank charges, packaging and raw materials, consulting 
services, travel costs among others.

RUB million (without VAT) 2009 2008 2007

Net revenue 72,507 71,486 52,317

Gross profit 18,360 17,876 11,965

As % of net revenue 25.3% 25.0% 22.9%

operating expenses, net 16,243 15,143 9,881

As % of net revenue 22.4% 21.2% 18.9%

operating profit (EBIT) 2,117 2,733 2,084

As % of net revenue 2.9% 3.8% 4.0%

EbiTdA 3,244 3,596 2,607

As % of net revenue 4.5% 5.03% 4.98%

net profit 783 1,256 649

As % of net revenue 1.08% 1.8% 1.2%

Gross profit and gross margin dynamics 
in 2008–2009
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25,000

17,876

25.0% 25.3%

18,360

10,000

5000

2008 2009
0

Gross profit, ruB million
gross margin, %

EBITDA/EBITDAR dynamics  
in 2008–2009
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EbiTdA, RUb million
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EbiTdA margin, %

5.0% 4.5%
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redistribute the work to other people rather than 
trying to replace people. It brought improved effi-
ciency and allowed us to keep salaries at the 2008 
levels.  The added benefit of this approach was that 
the employees were more motivated as they had 
more workload for the same salary rather than the 
same workload for less salary.

lease expenses increased as a percentage of total 
revenues between 2009 and 2008 to 4.6% from 
4.3%. The main reason for lease expenses to go 
up as percent was the increased number of stores 
that operated throughout the period.  Many leases 
were renegotiated downwards during 2009 but 
these rental rates reductions could not always 
match the individual store L4L decline.  

Advertising and promotional expenses remained 
almost on the same level in 2009 as compared to 
2008. The Group benefited from reduced rates for 
advertising but the savings were used to increase 
our gross rating points (gRP’s)  and support our 
promotional activities.

Transportation & warehouse service costs de-
creased by 17% to 1.8 billion RUb in 2009 from 
2.2 billion RUb in 2008 as we were able to get cer-
tain economies of scale by increasing the density 
of the stores in certain regions, we renegotiated 
transport rates with our outsourced suppliers and 
partially as a result of opening a new warehousing 
facility in Nizhny Novgorod. 

Depreciation and amortization expenses increas-
es are a direct result of the capital expenditure on 
2008 and 2009 new stores.

Other operating income  
and expenses

other operating income decreased to 536 million 
RUb in 2009 from 1,001 million RUb for the year 
ended 31 december 2008. The primary reason 
behind the decrease in other operating income is 
the loss of a significant amount of consumer credit 
commissions earned from the banks who provided 
in-store loans to our customers.

Operating profit

operating profit decreased by 22.5% to 2.1 billion 
RUb in 2009 from 2.7 billion RUb in 2008. As a per-
centage, the operating profit decreased to 2.9% in 
2009 from 3.8% in 2008.

Net finance costs

our net financing expenses increased in total by 
117.5% to 794 million ruB in 2009 from 365 mil-
lion RUb in 2008.

The reduction in interest expense to 303 million ruB 
from 415 million ruB was a combination of higher in-
terest rates but on a significantly lower loan portfolio.  
we moved to a net cash position in september 2009 
and remained in net cash for the full 4th quarter. in-
terest income was significantly lower in 2009 as we 
moved all cash to banks with a very good credit rating.

The net exchange rate loss in 2009 should be netted 
against exchange rate gains reported in 2008 as at 
31 December 2009 there was a significant differ-
ence in the spot rates for foreign currencies applied 

Net debt structure (in Russian rubles, millions)

short term investments
Cash and cash  
equivalents

Long term debt
short term debt
Letter of credit

0

3000

6000

-3000

-6000

31 dec 2008 31 dec  2009
-9000

1624

5448
Net debt=493 Net cash>6.4 bln

(3114)

(3943)
(508)

6447

100% debt
repayment
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to loan balances and the future rates for these same 
currencies applied to the forward contracts. 

Income tax expense

The effective tax rate for 2009 was 40.8% com-
pared to 47.0% in 2008. The reduction in effective 
rate was achieved primarily through improvement 
in inventory control which resulted in substantial de-
crease in losses due to inventory shortages.  Also tax 
rate change to 20% from 24% contributed to overall 
improvement in effective tax rate. 

Net profit for the year

net profit for the year decreased by 38% to 783 mil-
lion ruB in 2009 from 1,256 million ruB in 2008.  

Assets & liabilities

in 2009 the group continued to work on simplifying 
the balance sheet and reducing the reliance on debt.  
The primary focus was on the working capital opti-
mization.  As a result of our focus on working capital 
the group was able to end the year debt free and with 
a considerable of free cash.

Cash-flows

Cash flow from operating activities
The group was able to increase cash generated by 
operations to 8.1 billion RUb in 2009 from 4.1 bil-
lion RUb in 2008 by optimizing our trade conversion 
cycle section.

The Trade conversion cycle improved by 34 days 
compared to 2008. it indicates that it took the group 
34 fewer days to convert inventory and correspond-
ing receivables into cash. it takes into consideration 
inventory, trade and other accounts receivable and 
trade accounts payable. The main achievement was 
in trade accounts payable which improved by 37 days 
as a result of negotiations with our suppliers and the 
reduction of obsolete and slow moving stock. 

Cash flow from investing activities
Inflow of cash from investing activities occurred due 
to redemption of deposits in 2009 that were placed 
with banks in 2008 in the amount of 1.8 billion RUb. 
The amount of redemption was greater than invest-
ing requirements of 2009 expansion program.

Cash flow from financing activities
financing cash outflow of 7.5 billion ruB reflects full 
repayment of the group borrowings by the end of the 
year. The group used the cash generated by opera-
tions in repaying financial obligations.

Net debt (cash)

m.video’s net debt of 0.5 billion ruB in 2008 turned 
into a net cash position of 6.4 billion RUb in 2009. 

Long-term incentive program 
(“LTIP”)

The company initiated series 3 of the LTiP in decem-
ber 2009.   The lTIP was given to 56 key people within 
the group to help with retention.  The LTiP is an equity 
based program.

Net cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities, 2008–2009.

Year ended

31 December 2009 31 December 2008

operating cash-flows 3,409 4,146

movements in working capital, income tax and interest payments 4,703 (44)

Net cash generated / (used in) operating activities 8,112 4,102

Net cash used in investing activities 231 (2,562)

net cash generated from financing activities (7,504) 1,347

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 839 2,887
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impressions

leisure

experience

ThE TEChnoloGICAl suPErIorITy, fAnCy DEsIGn AnD usEr-frIEnDly 
fEATUREs Of ThE PROdUCTs iN M.vidEO sTOREs MOTivATE PEOPLE TO 
shARE ThEiR hObbiEs ANd bECOME CLOsER

Digital Camera
2.7» LCd, image processor,  
face detection technology

Digital SLR Camera
18-55mm zoom lens,  
CMOs sensor, full hd video

Digital Video Camcorder
25x optical zoom, 3.0 mP digital still
memory, shot stabilization

Friendship
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board of directors

1. David Hamid 
Independent Board Member  

2. Christopher Parks 
Board Member,  
Chief Financial Officer

3. Peter györffy 
Independent Board Member, 
Chairman of the Board  

4. utho Creusen 
Independent Board Member

5. Alexander Tynkovan 
Board Member,  
CEO/President

6. Pavel Breev 
Board Member, Expansion 
Director 

7. Ilpo Helander 
Independent Board Member, 
Vice Chairman of the Board

8. Stuart leighton 
Independent Board Member  

9. mikhail Kuchment 
Non-executive Board 
Member 

from left to right1

1 

Full biographies are avialable at  
www.mvideo.ru

6Board of Directors
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board of Management

Tatiana Okutina
Marketing Director

Irina Ivanova
Supply Chain Director

Maxim Zakhir
E-Commerce Development Director

Konstantin nechaev
Project Director

Olga Terpigoreva
HR Director

Management Team 7

Christopher Mangham
IT Director

Enrique Fernandez
Commercial Director

Pavel Breev
Expansion Director

Alexander Tynkovan 
CEO and President

Christopher Parks
Chief Financial officer

Stephen lewis
Retail Director
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sOMETiMEs PEOPLE ARE bEiNg sEiZEd by sTRONg fEELiNgs ThAT MAkE ThEM 
TRULy CARE AbOUT EACh OThER. iN OUR sTOREs wE hELP sOME OUR CUsTOMERs 
TO fLOURish ANd PREsERvE ThEsE bEAUTifUL EMOTiONs fOR yEARs

Range Hood 
2-speed fan,  
cooking surface  
light, removable  
filter

ambience

pleasure
Teapot
1500 watt heating element, 
360° rotating base post, auto 
off function

Stainless Steel Microwave
sensor cooking settings, defrost,  
child lock

comfort

Love
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M.video endeavours to disclose information about 
the Company and the group as a whole in a timely 
and regular manner, ensuring that information is 
made available to all shareholders at the same 
time. M.video tries to observe a reasonable bal-
ance between openness and transparency and 
protection of commercial interests. The Company 
fully observes the legal requirements and listing 
regulations of the russian stock Exchanges re-
garding public disclosure of information.  we dis-
close information in news releases, through the 
approved news wires and on the www.mvideo.ru 
web site.

Board of Directors

we established an informal advisory council in 
2003, many of whose members were elected to the 
Board of Directors of the Company at the Extraordi-
nary general Meeting held on february 27, 2007.

m.video’s Board of Directors has 9 members, five of 
whom are fully independent of the Company. Our 
Board members bring with them extensive experi-
ence of retailing, consumer electronics and supply 
chain.

At 31 december 2009 the board of directors was 
chaired by Peter Györffy, an independent director. 

At this date other board members included: Mr. 
Alexander Tynkovan, the Company’s founder and 
CEo, mr. Pavel Breev, our Expansion Director and 
shareholder, Mr. Christopher Parks, CfO and in-
dependent directors Mr. david hamid, Mr. ilpo 
helander (vice Chairman), Mr. stuart Leighton and 
mr. utho Creusen as well as non-executive director, 
Mr. Michael kuchment.

The board of directors, in accordance with the Rus-
sian Corporate Conduct Code and general best 
practice, appointed an Audit Committee and a Re-
muneration Committee in June 2007. These com-
mittees are chaired and filled by independent Board 
members.

Audit Committee Report

The Committee is primarily responsible for re-
viewing and monitoring the integrity of finan-
cial reporting by the Company, for reviewing the 
group’s internal control systems, for monitoring 
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit 
function and for overseeing the relationship with 
the external auditor. The full list of responsibilities 
and requirements of the audit committee is set 
out at on the web-site of M.video at  http://invest.m-
video.ru/path/?go=54.

The audit committee comprises two independent 
non-executive directors -  stuart leighton, Chair-
man and ilpo helander. in accordance with its 
terms the audit committee has sufficient recent 
relevant financial experience.

The committee met 6 times in 2009, with both 
independent members of the audit committee at-

M.vIDEO COMPlIES wITH THE RuSSIAN 
CORPORATE CONDuCT CODE AND ASPIRES 
TO COMPly wITH THE BEST INTERNATIONAl 
STANDARDS OF CORPORATE GOvERNANCE

Corporate Governance 8
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tending all meetings. Meetings were also attended 
by the Group Chief financial officer, Group finan-
cial Controller, head of internal Audit and the lead 
partner of the external auditors (Deloitte) was also 
present. Other senior management are invited to 
attend when the business of the committee re-
quires. 

during the year the committee held separate ses-
sions, without the presence of executive manage-
ment, with only the external auditors present and 
only the internal auditor present , to facilitate the 
discussion of any matter relating to its remit and 
any issues arising from audits. Arrangements 
have also been adopted to ensure that the head 
of internal Audit has direct access to the Commit-
tee chairman and is accountable to the Commit-
tee. furthermore, the Chairman of the Committee 
meets from time to time with the external auditor 
and senior management to ensure a full under-
standing of relevant issues.

At its meetings in 2009, the Committee consid-
ered, amongst other matters, the following:

Financial Reporting:

 Reviewed the interim management statements, 
half-yearly and annual financial statements (pre-
pared in accordance with international financial 
Reporting standards (“ifRs”)), including critical ac-
counting policies, estimates and judgements applied 
in preparing them and the transparency and clarity of 
the disclosures within them;

 Received reports and recommendations from 
management and the external auditor  on account-
ing and tax issues.

Internal Control:

° Received progress and status reports from man-
agement on the implementation of financial reporting 
procedures, processes and controls, and iT systems;

° reviewed recommendations made by both exter-
nal and internal auditors in relation to potential im-
provements in internal controls and followed these 
recommendations up with the management team.

Internal audit:

° The proposed internal audit departments work 
programme for the year was reviewed and agreed 
by the committee;

° Reviewed the level of resources and training al-
located to the internal audit department to ensure 
the audit plan could be delivered effectively by the 
internal audit department;

° Received and discussed regular updates on the 
progress of the internal audit department against its 
schedule of audits,  is notified of their key findings and 
tracks any material actions that are overdue or have 
been rescheduled.

External Audit:

° Approved the terms of engagement of the ex-
ternal auditor, the fees paid to them and the plan 
of work carried out by them;

° reviewed policies on the independence of the exter-
nal auditor and the provision of non-audit services;

° received reports on the findings of the external 
audit and reviewed the recommendations made to 
management by the external auditor and manage-
ment’s responses;



ANNUAL REPORT
2009Switched-on!

38

° Carried out a tender for the audit during the year 
and considered the proposed fee structure and audit 
engagement terms for 2010 and has recommended 
to the board that ZAO deloitte & Touche Cis be reap-
pointed as the external auditor of the financial state-
ments prepared in accordance with ifRs and also 
be appointed as the statutory auditor for individual 
group companies.

Other Activities:

° Reviewed the committees terms of reference;

° Conducted and annual review of the commit-
tees performance and effectiveness. for 2009, this 
review was facilitated as part of a wider review of 
the board and its committees. The review concluded 
that the audit committee was effective in carrying 
out its duties.

stuart Leighton,  
Audit Committee Chairman

Remuneration and Nomination  
Committee Report

The remit of the Remuneration Committee is to 
recommend the remuneration policy to the board 
of directors, to prepare proposals for the board 
for the remuneration of individual members of 
the management and to advise management on 
the level and structure of compensation for other 
senior personnel.

The role of the Remuneration Committee is de-
scribed in its charter which is available on the 
Company’s website under http://invest.m-video.ru/
path/?go=54. 

On 31 december 2009 the Remuneration Com-
mittee consisted of Mr. Utho Creusen (Chairman), 
mr. David hamid and mr. Peter Györffy. 

The Committee had seven meetings in 2009. 

despite challenging economic environment we 
have endeavored to retain incentive and reward 
for a team that continues to outperform the mar-
ket.  To this end a new LTiP program was under con-
sideration of the Committee observing different 
alternatives to offer top team managers an attrac-
tive compensation package which is focused on 
rewarding the creation of long term shareholder 
value. The new lTIP (2010 – 2015) was presented 
and approved by the board in december 2009.

during the year we continued to strengthen the 
team adding top caliber recruits to the executive 
team.  Looking forward we now seek to introduce 
a better level of succession planning into the com-
pany at all levels. in its meetings the Committee 
discussed and defined requirements and expecta-
tions regarding succession planning and talented 
management promotion.

Overall i am pleased to report that the matter 
of remuneration policy is taken seriously by the 
board and that the Committee, consisting entirely 
of independent directors, is functioning properly to 
look after the interests of all shareholders, using 
external benchmarks to set appropriate levels of 
remuneration.

Utho Creusen,  
Remuneration and Nomination  
Committee Chairman
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in the Russian federation our shares are traded on 
the Russian Trading system (RTs) and on the Mos-

cow Interbank Currency Exchange (mICEX) under 
the following symbols and tickers:

Shareholder Information

Share tickers

Exchange bloomberg ticker Reuters ticker

MiCEX Mvid RM Mvid MM

RTs Mvid RU Mvid.RTs

Share Information

date of iPO (RTs/MiCEX) 1.11.2007

offer price usD 6.95

Capital raised for operations Usd 203 million

Price at 31.12.2009 Usd 3.97

high/Low Usd 8.80/Usd 0.69

Market Capitalisation Usd 713 million as of december 31, 2009

shares outstanding 179,768,227

free float 29.4%

International identification codes

Name Code

isiN RU000A0JPgA0

Registrar Information

OJsC “Moscow Central  
depositary” (“MCd”) 

34/8, bolshaya Pochtovaya str., Moscow, 
105082, russia
Telephones: +7 (495) 221-13-35,  
+7 (495) 221-13-33, +7 (495) 221-13-34
E-mail: info@mcd.ru

web: www.mcd.ru

Contacts

headquarters

OJsC “Company “M.video” 40/12 building 1 
Nizhnaya krasnoselskaya str. 
Moscow, 107066, Russia 
Tel + 7 (495) 644-28-48 ext. 7064 
E-mail: ir@mvideo.ru

official website: invest.mvideo.ru

for investor relations purposes  
please contact:

denis davydov
investor Relations director 
Tel.: +7 (495) 644-2848 ext. 7064
E-mail: ir@mvideo.ru
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AT A fiRsT gLANCE ON ThE gOOds sOLd iN M.vidEO sTOREs OUR CUsTOMERs 
fEEL CONfidENT AbOUT hOw sAfE ANd dURAbLE ThEy ARE. yOUR NEAR ANd 
dEAR wiLL bE ThOROUghLy PROTECTEd UsiNg ThEsE gOOds

experience

comfort

Built-in Electric
Convection Oven  
True Convection cooking
system, self-cleaning,
delay-bake

Built-in Electric Cook Top
3000 watt power, 4 ribbon 
heating elements, 3-speed 
downdraft fan

Range Hood 
Centrifugal blower, 
3-speed fan,
aluminum filter

Confidence
ambience
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Statement of Management’s Responsibilities for the Preparation and Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Statement of Management’s Responsibilities for the Preparation 
and Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year 
Ended 31 December 2009

The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with the independent auditors’ responsibilities 
stated in the independent auditors’ report set out on page 44 is made with a view of distinguishing the 
respective responsibilities of the management and those of the independent auditors in relation to the 
consolidated financial statements of OJSC “Company M.video” and subsidiaries (the “Group”).

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that present 
fairly the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and the consolidated 
results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended, in compliance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for:

° Selecting suitable accounting principles and applying them consistently;

° Making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

°  Stating whether IFRS have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained 
in the consolidated financial statements; and

°  Preparing the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate 
to presume that the Group will continue in business for the foreseeable future.

Management is also responsible for:

°  Designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls 
throughout the Group;

°  Maintaining proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the 
consolidated financial position of the Group, and which enable them to ensure that the consolidated 
financial statements of the Group comply with IFRS;

°  Maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with local legislation and accounting 
standards in the respective jurisdictions in which the Group operates;

°  Taking such steps as are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Group; and

°  Detecting and preventing fraud and other irregularities.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 were approved on 24 May 
2010 on behalf of the Board of Directors by:

C. Parks
Chief Financial Officer

A. Tynkovan 
Chief Executive Officer
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the shareholders of Open Joint Stock Company “Company M.video”:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Open Joint Stock Company 
“Company M.video” and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise of the consolidated balance sheet 
as at 31 December 2009 and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility 
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making 
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance on whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2009, and its consolidated financial 
performance and the consolidated results of its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards.

 Moscow
 24 May 2010

Deloitte & Touche CIS 
Business Center “White Square” 
5 Lesnaya St., Bld. B 
Moscow, 125047, Russia

Tel: +7 (495) 787 0600
Fax: +7 (495) 787 0601
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Notes 31 December
2009

31 December
2008

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:

Property, plant and equipment 6 6,074 5,917

Advances paid for property, plant and equipment 157 -

Intangible assets 7 474 335

Deferred tax assets 15 1,160 915

Forward exchange contract - 388

Other assets 127 119

ToTal non-currenT asseTs 7,992 7,674

CURRENT ASSETS:

Inventories 8 15,474 14,115

Trade accounts receivable 104 138

Other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 9 1,067 2,043

VAT recoverable and other taxes receivable 10 1,159 1,489

Income tax receivable 34 54

Forward exchange contract - 433

Short-term investments 11 - 1,624

Cash and cash equivalents 12 6,447 5,448

Other current assets 225 164

TOTAl CURRENT ASSETS 24,510 25,508

TOTAl ASSETS 32,502 33,182

Open Joint Stock Company

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2009, in millions of Russian Rubles
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Notes 31 December
2009

31 December
2008

EQUITY AND lIABIlITIES

EQUITY:

Share capital 13 1,798 1,798

Additional paid-in capital 4,576 4,576

Retained earnings 2,385 1,615

TOTAl EQUITY 8,759 7,989

NON-CURRENT lIABIlITIES:

Long-term loans and borrowings 14 - 3,114

Deferred tax liabilities 15 288 446

Provisions 21 129 119

ToTal non-currenT liabiliTies 417 3,679

CURRENT lIABIlITIES:

Short-term loans and borrowings 16 - 3,943

Trade accounts payable 17 20,495 14,878

Other payables and accrued expenses 18 567 1,309

Advances received from customers 506 318

Income tax payable 321 263

Other taxes payable 19 132 138

Deferred revenue 20 1,094 505

Provisions 21 211 160

TOTAl CURRENT lIABIlITIES 23,326 21,514

TOTAl lIABIlITIES 23,743 25,193

TOTAl EQUITY AND lIABIlITIES 32,502 33,182

Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued) as at 31 December 2009,  in millions of Russian Rubles

The Notes on pages 51 to 88 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. The 
independent auditors’ report is presented on page 44.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors: 24 May 2010.

C. Parks
Chief Financial Officer

A. Tynkovan 
Chief Executive Officer
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Notes 2009 2008

REVENUE 22 72,507 71,486

COST OF SALES 23 (54,147) (53,610)

GROSS PROFIT 18,360 17,876

Selling, general and administrative expenses 24 (16,615) (16,011)

Other operating income 25 536 1,001

Other operating expenses 26 (164) (133)

OPERATING PROFIT 2,117 2,733

Finance costs, net 27 (794) (365)

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1,323 2,368

Income tax expense 15 (540) (1,112)

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR, being  
TOTAl COMPREHENSIVE INCOME for the year

783 1,256

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES FOR BASIC AND DILUTED  
EARNINGS PER SHARE (in millions)

180 180

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (in Russian Rubles) 4.35 6.98

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2009

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2009, in millions of Russian 
Rubles, except earnings per share

The Notes on pages 51 to 88 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. The 
independent auditors’ report is presented on page 44.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors: 24 May 2010.

C. Parks
Chief Financial Officer

A. Tynkovan 
Chief Executive Officer
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Notes Share 
capital

Additional
paid-in 
capital

Retained 
earnings Total

Balance as at 31 December 2007 1,798 4,576 265 6,639

Recognition of share-based payment for ordinary shares previ-
ously issued

28 - - 87 87

Reversal of related income tax previously recognized in equity 15 - - 7 7
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 1,256 1,256

Balance as at 31 December 2008 1,798 4,576 1,615 7,989

Recognition of share-based payment for ordinary shares previ-
ously issued

28 - - 28 28

Tax on dividends distributed by the Group’s subsidiaries to the 
parent company

15 - - (41) (41)

Total comprehensive income for the year - - 783 783

Balance as at 31 December 2009 1,798 4,576 2,385 8,759

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2009, in millions of Russian Rubles

The Notes on pages 51 to 88 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. The 
independent auditors’ report is presented on page 44.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors: 24 May 2010.

C. Parks
Chief Financial Officer

A. Tynkovan 
Chief Executive Officer
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Notes 2009 2008

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Total comprehensive income for the year 783 1,256

Adjustments for:

Income tax expense recognized in statement of comprehensive income 15 540 1,112

Interest expense on bank loans 27 368 631

Interest income 27 (65) (226)

Coupon yield expense on corporate bonds 27 - 10

Loss on sale or disposal of property, plant and equipment 6 10 2

Depreciation, amortization and impairment loss 6,7,24 1,127 863

Net foreign exchange loss 25,27 188 734

Change in allowance for doubtful trade accounts receivable (2) -

Share-based payment 28 28 87

Reversal of allowance for doubtful notes receivable (14) (12)

Accrual of allowance for doubtful advances paid 9 34 90

Change in fair value of forward contracts 25,27 279 (937)

Change in allowance for goods returns (5) 5

Change in allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories 8,23 138 531

Inventory losses 23 302 711

operating cash flows before movements in working capital 3,711 4,857

Increase in inventories (1,806) (5,180)

Decrease/(increase) in trade accounts receivable 45 (58)

Decrease/(increase) in other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 942 (453)

Increase in other current assets (4) (13)

Decrease in VAT recoverable and other taxes receivable 330 101

Increase in trade accounts payable 5,621 5,462

(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accrued expenses (779) 867

Increase in advances received from customers 187 25

(Decrease)/increase in warranty provision (3) 5

(Decrease)/increase in other taxes payable (6) 40

Increase in deferred revenue 589 200

Cash generated by operations 8,827 5,853

Income tax paid (905) (1,254)

Interest paid (352) (629)

Forward contracts settlement 542 132

NET CASH GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 8,112 4,102

Consolidated Statement Of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2009

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2009, in millions of Russian Rubles
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Refer to Notes 6, 9 and 28 for details of non-cash transactions.

The Notes on pages 51 to 88 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. The 
independent auditors’ report is presented on page 44.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors: 24 May 2010.

2009 2008

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,201) (2,535)

Short-term investments with banks - (4,834)

Proceeds from settlement of short-term investments 1,772 4,766

(Increase)/decrease in advances paid for property, plant and equipment (157) 42

Purchases of intangible assets (232) (334)

Receipts from settlements of loans and notes receivable - 29

Interest received 49 304

neT cash generaTed by/(used in) invesTing acTiviTies 231 (2,562)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1,290 2,880

Proceeds from short-term borrowings 6,827 18,419

Repayment of borrowings (15,621) (19,833)

Bonds repaid - (119)

NeT cash (used in)/generaTed by financing acTiviTies (7,504) 1,347

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVAlENTS 839 2,887

Net foreign exchange difference 160 181

CASH AND CASH EQUIVAlENTS at the beginning of the year 5,448 2,380

CASH AND CASH EQUIVAlENTS at the end of the year 6,447 5,448

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2009, in millions of Russian Rubles (Continued)

C. Parks
Chief Financial Officer

A. Tynkovan 
Chief Executive Officer
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

Shareholders
As at 31 December 2009 and 2008 the registered shareholders of OJSC “Company M.video” and their 
respective ownership and voting interests were as follows:

Ultimate Shareholders
M.video Investment Ltd. (BVI), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands controls 100% of 
the voting and ordinary shares of M.video Holding (Cyprus) Limited and Svece Limited (a company 
incorporated in Cyprus), and is the ultimate parent entity of the Company.

Name of subsidiary Nature of 
business

Proportion of 
ownership interest 

and voting power  
held, % 2009

Proportion of 
ownership interest 

and voting power  
held, % 2008

LLC “M.video Management” Trading 100 100

LLC “M.video Torg” Equipment 100 100

LLC “M.video Trade” Trading 100 100

LLC “Sphera Invest” Real estate 100 100

LLC “Standard Invest” Real estate 100 100

LLC “M.video Finance” Finance 100 100

2009 2008

Svece Limited 69.9626% 69.9626%

M.video Holding (Cyprus) Limited 0.5884% 0.7405%

Various shareholders 29.4490% 29.2969%

TOTAl 100% 100%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  
for the year ended 31 December 2009, in millions of Russian Rubles 

1. General information

The consolidated financial statements of OJSC “Company M.video” (the “Company”) and subsidiaries 
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2009 were authorized for issue in accordance with a 
resolution of the Board of Directors on 24 May 2010.

The Company and its subsidiaries (see the table below) are incorporated in the Russian Federation. 
The Company is registered at: 40/12, building 20, Nizhnaya Krasnoselskaya Street, Moscow, 105066, 
Russian Federation. Following the initial public offering in November 2007, the Company’s ordinary 
shares were admitted to trading on RTS and MICEX stock exchanges in the Russian Federation.

LLC “Company M.video” was incorporated on 3 December 2003. On 25 September 2006 the Company 
was reorganized from a Limited Liability Company to an Open Joint Stock Company.

The Group is the operator of a chain of consumer electronic stores operating in the Russian Federation. The 
Group specializes in the sale of TV, audio, video, Hi-Fi, home appliances and digital equipment, as well as 
related services. The Group comprises a chain of owned and leased stores (177 stores as at 31 December 
2009; 157 stores as at 31 December 2008) and two online internet stores that sell to end users. In 2009 
the Group also operated in wholesale sector, which comprised of sales to other retailers.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include assets, liabilities and result of operations 
of the Company and the following of its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2009 and 2008:
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Mr. Alexander Tynkovan, a citizen of the Russian Federation, has a controlling interest in M.video 
Investment Ltd. (BVI).

2. Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

Basis of Accounting
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the 
valuation of financial instruments in accordance with IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement” (“IAS 39”) and valuation of items of property, plant and equipment measured at fair 
value which was used as deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment as at the date of transition 
to IFRS. The Group transitioned to IFRS on 1 January 2006.

All companies within the Group maintain their accounting records in accordance with Russian Accounting 
Standards (“RAS”). RAS differ substantially from those standards generally accepted under IFRS. 
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared based on the Russian 
statutory accounting records, reflect those adjustments necessary for such consolidated financial 
statements to be presented in accordance with IFRS.

Functional and presentation currency – The consolidated financial statements are presented in Russian 
Rubles (“RUB”), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Functional currency for 
each Group company has been determined as the currency of the primary economic environment in 
which the company operates.

Adoption of the new standards and interpretations
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as 
discussed below.

The Group has adopted the following new and amended International Accounting Standards (“IAS”), 
International Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) 
of the IASB in these annual consolidated financial statements:

°  Amendment to IFRS 1 “First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards” and IAS 
27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” – Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly 
Controlled Entity or Associate;

°  Amendment to IFRS 2 “Share-Based Payment” – Vesting Conditions and Cancellations;

°  Amendment to IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”;

°  IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”;

°  IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements’’ (as revised in 2007);

°   Amendment to IAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation” and IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial 
Statements” – Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation;

°  IFRIC 15 “Agreement for the Construction of Real Estate”;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

°  IFRIC 16 “Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation”;

°  Improvements to IFRSs (May 2008).

Except as described below the adoption of these standards and interpretations have not had and is not 
expected to have an impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group:

Amendment to IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”
These amendments were issued in March 2009 and are applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2009. Fair value measurements related to items recorded at fair value are to be disclosed by 
source of inputs using a three level fair value hierarchy, by class, for all financial instruments recognised 
at fair value. The amendments also clarify the requirements for liquidity risk disclosures with respect to 
derivative transactions and assets used for liquidity management. The required disclosures in respect of 
fair value measurements and liquidity risk are not significantly impacted by the amendments and are 
presented in Note 32. The Group has elected not to provide comparative information for these expanded 
disclosures in the current year in accordance with the transitional reliefs offered in these amendments.

IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
The Group has adopted IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” (“IFRS 8”) with effect from 1 January 2009. IFRS 
8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components 
of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate 
resources to the segments and to assess their performance. In contrast, the predecessor standard 
(IAS 14 “Segment Reporting”) required an entity to identify two sets of segments (business and 
geographical), using a risks and returns approach, with the entity’s ‘system of internal financial 
reporting to key management personnel’ serving only as the starting point for the identification 
of such segments. As a result of the adoption of IFRS 8, management has reviewed the segment 
information reported externally in the prior years and determined that the existing identification of  
the Group’s reportable segments complies with IFRS 8 principles. Thus the adoption of IFRS 8 by the 
Group has not resulted in a change in reportable segments previously disclosed by the Group.

IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” (as revised in 2007)
The revised standard separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes in 
equity includes only details of transactions with owners, with non-owner changes in equity are presented 
in a reconciliation of each component of equity. In addition, the standard introduces  a statement of 
comprehensive income: it presents all items of income and expense recognised in the income statement, 
together with all other items of recognised income and expense, either in one single statement, or in two 
linked statements. The Group has elected to present one statement.

3. Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation – The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of 
the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the 
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain 
benefits from its activities.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as the parent 
company, using consistent accounting policies.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group 
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses and profits and losses resulting from 
intragroup transactions are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Operating segments – Segment reporting is presented on the basis of management’s perspective and 
relates to the parts of the Group that are defined as operating segments. Operating segments are 
identified on the basis of internal reports to the Group’s chief operating decision maker (“CODM”). These 
internal reports are prepared on the same basis as these consolidated financial statements.

Based on the current management structure, the Group has identified two operating segments: sales 
of consumer electronics through the chain of retail stores and internet sales of consumer electronics. 
For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements these operating segments have been 
aggregated into one reportable segment as both operating segments exhibit similar long-term economic 
characteristics, sell similar products, use similar technologies to deliver those products, and sell products 
and services to similar classes of customers.

Going concern – These consolidated financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

Foreign currencies – The individual financial statements of each Group’s entity are presented in the 
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency).

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than 
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing 
at the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried 
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate prevailing 
on the date when the most recent fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured 
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences 
arising on loans and borrowings are reported as part of finance cost, while exchange differences related 
to operating items are included into other operating income and expenses.

Property, plant and equipment – Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Deemed cost of the items of property, 
plant and equipment existing as at 1 January 2006, the date of transition to IFRS was determined on the 
basis of fair values determined by independent appraisers as allowed by the provisions of IFRS 1. Fair value 
of properties was determined with reference to market prices, while fair value of the other items, including 
the Group’s trade equipment, was predominantly based on the estimates of depreciated replacement 
costs. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Major replacements or modernizations of property, plant and equipment are capitalized and depreciated 
over their estimated useful lives. All other repair and maintenance expenditure is recognised in profit 
and loss during the financial period in which it is incurred.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful lives, 
using the straight line method, on the following bases:

Buildings 20-30 years
Leasehold improvements 2-7 years
Trade equipment 5 years
Security equipment 3 years
Other fixed assets 3-5 years

For leasehold improvements the depreciation period includes the period when the Group has the possibility 
to extend the period of the lease, taking into account the legal provisions relating to lease terms, and its 
intention to seek a long term presence in the various retail locations in which it operates. This is relevant for 
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leases of retail space which, on a portfolio basis, have a history of successful renewal. All other leasehold 
improvements are depreciated over the shorter of useful life or the related lease term.

Trade equipment is depreciated over the estimated useful life specified above unless there is a plan to 
fully renovate the store prior to reaching the predetermined estimated useful life. In this situation, the 
net book value of trade equipment will be depreciated over the remaining estimated useful life being 
the period of time up to the planned renovation works.

The assets’ residual value and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance 
sheet date. Where there are indicators that an asset’s or cash generating unit’s carrying amount is 
greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down to its recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between 
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in income.

Construction in progress comprises the cost of equipment in the process of installation and other costs directly 
relating to the construction of property, plant and equipment including an appropriate allocation of directly 
attributable variable overheads that are incurred in construction. Depreciation of these assets, on the same 
basis as for other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Intangible assets – Intangible assets acquired separately are reported at cost less accumulated 
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is charged on a straight-line basis over 
estimated useful lives of these intangible assets. The estimated useful life and amortization method are 
reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being 
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful lives per class of intangible assets are as follows:

Software licenses 5-10 years
Trademarks 5-10 years

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets – At each balance sheet date the Group reviews the carrying 
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets 
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is 
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate 
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. For tangible and intangible assets the CGU is deemed 
to be each group of stores located in one city. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can 
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the 
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Taxation – Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as 
reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income 
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never 
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
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profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred 
tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can 
be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill 
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a 
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments 
in subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable 
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from 
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognized 
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the 
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to be reversed in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of 
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied in the 
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax 
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group 
expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the period
Current and deferred tax are recognized as an expense or income in the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income, except when they relate to items credited or debited directly to equity, in which 
case the tax is also recognized directly in equity, or where they arise from the initial accounting for a 
business combination. In the case of a business combination, the tax effect is taken into account in 
calculating goodwill or in determining the excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the 
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over cost.

Fair value – The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organized financial markets is 
determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date. 
For investment where there is no active market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. 
Such techniques include using recent arms length market transactions; reference to the current market 
value of another instrument, which is substantially the same; discounted cash flow analysis or other 
valuation models.

Financial assets – Investments are recognized and derecognized on a trade date, where the purchase 
or sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within 
the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, net of 
transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which 
are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets as ‘at fair value 
through profit or loss’ (“FVTPL”), ‘held-to-maturity investments’, ‘available-for-sale’ (“AFS”) financial 
assets and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial 
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
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Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset and of 
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where 
appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets 
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets as at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the financial asset is either held for trading or it is 
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

°  It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or

°   It is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and 
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

°   It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial 
recognition if:

°   Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency 
that would otherwise arise; or

°   The financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is 
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s 
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is 
provided internally on that basis; or

°   It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 “Financial 
instruments: recognition and measurement” permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) 
to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets as at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognized in profit 
or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on 
the financial asset. Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note 3 above.

Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest method less 
impairment, with revenue recognized on an effective yield method. For the periods covered by the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements, the Group did not hold any investments in this category.

Loans and receivables
Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured 
at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any impairment and bad debts.

Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables 
when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
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Available for sale financial assets
Available for sale (“AFS”) financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as 
available for sale or are not classified in any of the three preceding categories. After initial measurement, 
available for sale financial assets are measured at fair value with unrealized gains or losses being 
recognized directly in equity in the net unrealized gains reserve. When the investment is disposed of, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recorded in equity is recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
income. Interest earned or paid on the investments is reported as interest income or expense using 
the effective interest rate. Dividends earned on investments are recognized in the statement of 
comprehensive income as ‘Dividends received’ when the right or payment have been established.

For available for sale investments for which there is no reliable market information to determine fair 
value, the investments are carried at cost.

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those as at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance 
sheet date. Financial assets are impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more 
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows 
of the investment have been impacted. For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the 
impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial 
assets with the exception of trade accounts receivable where the carrying amount is reduced through 
the use of an allowance account. When a trade accounts receivable is uncollectible, it is written off 
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited 
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized 
in profit or loss.

With the exception of AFS equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment 
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was 
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent 
that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what 
the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized.

In respect of AFS equity securities, any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is 
recognized directly in equity.

Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained 
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, 
the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for 
the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with 
the substance of the contractual arrangement.
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Equity instrument
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded as the proceeds 
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and are subsequently 
measured at the higher of:

  The amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37 “Provisions, 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and

  The amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in 
accordance with the revenue recognition policies set out below.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities as at FVTPL or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities as at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL where the financial liability is either held for trading or it 
is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

°   It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the near future; or

°   It is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and 
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

°   It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon 
initial recognition if:

°  Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency 
that would otherwise arise; or

°  The financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which 
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s 
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is 
provided internally on that basis; or

°   It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 “Financial 
instruments: recognition and measurement” permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) 
to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities as at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognized in profit 
or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial 
liability. Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note 3 above.
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Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction 
costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 
method, with interest expense recognized on an effective yield basis.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or they expire.

Share-based payments – Equity-settled share based payments to employees are measured at the fair 
value of the equity instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value 
of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in Note 28.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on 
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that 
will eventually vest. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity 
instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognized in 
profit or loss over the remaining vesting period with a corresponding adjustment to retained earnings.

Derivative financial instruments – The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to manage 
its exposure to foreign exchange rate risk on its foreign currency denominated debt, namely foreign 
exchange forward contracts. The Group does not use hedge accounting for these derivatives. As a result, 
such derivative financial instruments are treated as other financial assets and liabilities as at FVTPL. 
Gains and losses recognized for the changes in fair value of forward contracts are presented as part 
of finance costs or other operating expenses of the Group depending on whether its use is related to a 
financial item or an operating item.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is calculated by reference to current forward exchange 
rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles.

Costs of an equity transaction – The transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a 
deduction from equity (net of any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs 
directly attributable to the equity transaction that otherwise would have been avoided.

The amount of transaction costs accounted for as a deduction from equity in the period is disclosed 
separately. The related amount of income taxes recognized directly in equity is included in the aggregate 
amount of current and deferred income tax credited or charged to equity.

Value added tax – Value added tax (“VAT”) related to sales is payable to tax authorities on the earliest 
of (a) cash received from customers in advance or (b) transfer of the goods or rendering services to 
customers. Input VAT is generally recoverable against sales VAT upon receipt of the VAT invoice. Input 
VAT on construction in progress can be reclaimed on receipt of VAT invoices for the particular stage of 
work performed or, if the construction in progress project cannot be broken down into stages, on receipt 
of VAT invoices upon completion of the contracted work.

VAT is generally allowed to be settled on a net basis. VAT related to sales and purchases which have not 
been settled at the balance sheet date is recognized in the balance sheet on a gross basis and disclosed 
separately as an asset and liability. Where a provision has been made for the impairment of receivables, 
the impairment loss is recorded for the gross amount of the debtor, including VAT.

Inventories – Inventories are recorded at the lower of average cost or net realizable value. In-bound 
freight related costs from our suppliers are included as part of the net cost of merchandise inventories. 
Certain supplier bonuses that are not reimbursement of specific, incremental and identifiable costs to 
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promote a supplier’s products are also included in the cost of inventory. Other costs associated with 
storing and transporting merchandise inventories to our retail stores are expensed as incurred and 
included as part of selling, general and administrative expenses.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs 
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks, in transit and on hand 
in stores and short term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, and credit card 
payments received within 24 hours.

Borrowing costs – The borrowing costs are capitalized by the Group as part of the cost of the asset 
when the costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction of a qualifying asset including 
construction in progress with a commencement date on or after 1 January 2008. The Group defines 
qualifying assets as leasehold improvements and other assets acquired in connection with the new 
store openings which generally take three months or longer to become operational. Other borrowing 
costs are expensed as incurred.

Provisions – Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding 
the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered 
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement 
will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Warranties
Warranties are generally covered by the brand owner directly or through their authorized agents in 
Russia.

When a supplier is unable to offer warranty services for their products in the Russian Federation, the 
Group makes a provision for warranty costs. These costs are recognized at the date of sale of the 
relevant products at management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group’s 
obligations.

Revenue recognition – Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. 
Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates, discounts and value added tax. Inter-
company revenue is eliminated. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before 
revenue is recognized:

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all the following conditions are satisfied:

°   The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

°  The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with 
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

°  The amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
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°   It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and

°  The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

The Group has two categories of goods for resale: retail and wholesale.

Retail revenue (excluding revenue from sale of additional service agreements) is recognized at the point 
of sale or when the delivery is complete, if later. Retail sales are transacted by either cash or credit card. 
The recognized revenue includes credit card fees payable for the transaction. Such costs are presented 
in operating expenses.

Starting from 2008 the Group operates a loyalty points program “M.video Bonus”, which allows customers 
to accumulate points when they purchase goods in the Group’s retail stores. The points can then be 
redeemed as a payment for merchandise, subject to a minimum number of points being obtained. 
Proceeds from sale to members of the loyalty program are allocated between the loyalty points and the 
other components of the sale. The consideration allocated to the loyalty points is measured by reference 
to their fair value, i.e. the amount for which the loyalty points could be sold separately. This amount is 
deferred and recognized as revenue when the points are redeemed. Expected breakage is recognized as 
revenue at the time of initial sale as it is excluded from the amount allocated to loyalty points.

Wholesale revenue is recognized when the customer has collected the goods from the warehouse or 
when goods are delivered and accepted at the customer’s warehouse and after satisfying the criteria 
outlined above.

Revenue from services
Revenue from services is recognized in the period in which the services have been rendered and the 
following conditions are satisfied:

°  The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

°   It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;

°  The stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date can be measured reliably; and

°  The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured 
reliably.

Additional service agreements
Revenue from the sale of additional service agreements is recognized on an ‘as earned’ basis with the 
unearned portion (if any) spread over the remaining term of the contracts to reflect the costs the Group 
expects to incur in performance of its contractual obligations. The revenue is recognized in full when no 
further costs are expected to be incurred.

Costs directly associated with the sale of additional service agreements, such as sales bonuses paid to 
shop assistants, as well as commission paid to other parties to provide full or partial coverage of the 
Group’s obligations under existing additional service agreements are recognized in the statement of 
comprehensive income on the same basis as related revenue.

Revenue from the sale of additional service agreements is disclosed within retail revenue.

Agents
The Group recognizes as revenue any sales performed as an agent at net amounts. Such fees include 
sales of telephone service contracts, service and installation fees.
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Gift cards
The Group sells gift cards to its customers in its retail stores and through its website. The gift cards have an 
expiration date and are required to be used during specified periods of time. The Group recognizes income 
from gift cards when: (i) the gift card is redeemed by the customer; or (ii) when the gift cards expire.

Interest income
Revenue is recognized as interest is accrued (using the effective interest method). Interest income is 
included in the net finance cost in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Supplier bonuses – The Group receives bonuses from suppliers. All supplier bonuses are treated as 
volume allowances unless they are subject to a separate agreement which is specific, incremental and 
identifiable. Supplier bonuses which are earned by achieving certain volume purchases are recorded 
when it is reasonably assured the Group will reach these volumes. Supplier bonuses based on volume 
are recorded as a reduction of the carrying cost of the inventory to which they relate. Supplier bonuses 
provided as a reimbursement of specific, incremental and identifiable costs incurred to promote a 
supplier’s products are included as an expense (or asset cost) reduction when the cost is incurred.

Leases – The Group has not entered into any finance leases, although it does have a significant number 
of operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term, 
except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic 
benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are 
recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. The impact of lease escalation clauses 
are recognized in expenses in the period in which they are activated.

Any benefits received from the landlord as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are spread over the 
lease term on a straight line basis. Sublease income and lease expenses are presented on the net basis.

Pre-opening expenses – Expenses incurred in the process of opening new stores which do not meet 
capitalization criteria under IAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment” are expensed as incurred. Such 
expenses include rent, utilities and other operating expenses.

Employee benefits – The Group contributes to the Russian Federation state pension, medical and social 
insurance on behalf of all its current employees by paying unified social tax (“UST”). Any related expenses 
are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as they become due. The Group 
does not operate any employer sponsored pension plans.

Dividends – Dividends are recognized as a liability in the period in which they have been declared by the 
shareholders in a general meeting and become legally payable.

4. Standards and Interpretations in issue not yet adopted

The following new or revised standards and interpretations issued by IASB and IFRIC have been published 
at the date of authorization of the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 
December 2009, but are not yet effective:

°   IFRS 2 “Share-Based Payment” – Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions;

°  IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” (as revised in 2008), IAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements” (as revised in 2008) and IAS 28 “Investments in Associates” (as revised in 2008);

°   IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”;
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°   IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” (as revised in 2009);

°   Amendment to IAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation” – Classification of Rights Issues;

°  IFRIC 9 “Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives” and Amendment to IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement”;

°  IFRIC 17 “Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners”;

°   IFRIC 18 “Transfers of Assets from Customers”;

°   IFRIC 19 “Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments”;

°   Improvements to IFRSs (2009);

°   Improvements to IFRSs (2010).

IFRS 2 “Share-Based Payment” – Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions
The IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 2 in June 2009; it becomes effective for financial years beginning 
on or after 1 January 2010. The amendment introduces changes in the accounting for group cash-
settled share-based payment transactions. This amendment also supersedes IFRIC 8 and IFRIC 11. The 
adoption of this amendment will not have an impact of the financial position or performance of the 
Group as no events occurred to which this amendment relates to.

IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” (as revised in 2008), IAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” 
(as revised in 2008) and IAS 28 “Investments in Associates” (as revised in 2008)
The Revised standards were issued in January 2008 and become effective for financial years beginning 
on or after 1 July 2009. IFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number of changes in the accounting for business 
combinations occurring after this date that will impact the amount of goodwill recognized, the reported 
results in the period that an acquisition occurs, and future reported results. IAS 27 (Revised) requires 
that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of control) is accounted for as an 
equity transaction. Therefore, such transactions will no longer give rise to goodwill, nor will it give rise 
to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the amended standard changes the accounting for losses incurred by the 
subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary. Other consequential amendments were made 
to IAS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, IAS 12 “Income Taxes”, IAS 21 “The Effect of Changes in Foreign 
Exchange Rates”, IAS 28 “Investment in Associates”, and IAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”. The changes 
in IFRS 3 (Revised) and IAS 27 (Revised) will affect future acquisitions or loss of control and transactions 
with minority interests. Management anticipates that the standards will have no effect on the Group’s 
reported income or net assets on adoption.

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
The standard was issued in November 2009 and becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2013, earlier application is permitted. The new standard provides a classification of financial 
assets which determines whether a financial asset is measured at amortised cost or at fair value, based 
on how an entity manages its financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial 
assets. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the new standard on its financial statements.

IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” (as revised in 2009)
In November 2009 the IASB issued the revised IAS 24, which shall be applied for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2011. The revised standard simplifies the disclosure requirements for government-
related entities and clarifies the definition of a related party. The Group is currently assessing the impact 
of the amended standard on disclosures in its consolidated financial statements.
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Amendment to IAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation” – Classification of Rights Issues
In October 2009 the IASB issued the amendment to IAS 32, it becomes effective for financial years 
beginning on or after 1 February 2010. The amendment addresses the accounting for rights issues (rights, 
options or warrants) that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the issuer. The 
amendment requires that provided certain conditions are met, such rights issues are classified as equity 
regardless of the currency in which the exercise price is denominated. The Group is currently assessing the 
impact of the amended standard on disclosures in its consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 9 “Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives” and Amendment to IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement”
In 2009 the IASB issued the amendment to IFRIC 9, it becomes effective for financial years beginning on 
or after 30 June 2009.This amendment requires an entity to assess whether an embedded derivative 
must be separated from a host contract when the entity reclassifies a hybrid financial asset out of 
the fair value through profit or loss category. This assessment is to be made based on circumstances 
that existed on the later of the date the entity first became a party to the contract and the date of any 
contract amendments that significantly change the cash flows of the contract. IAS 39 now states that if 
an embedded derivative cannot be reliably measured, the entire hybrid instrument remain classified as 
at fair value through profit or loss. Management anticipates that the adoption of this amendment will 
not have an impact on the consolidated financial position or performance of the Group.

IFRIC 17 “Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners”
The IFRIC was issued in November 2008 and shall be applied prospectively for financial years beginning 
on or after 1 July 2009. The IFRIC clarifies when and how distribution of non-cash assets as dividends to 
the owners should be recognized. An entity should measure a liability to distribute non-cash assets as 
a dividend to its owners at the fair value of the assets to be distributed. A gain or loss on disposal of the 
distributed non-cash assets will be recognised in profit or loss when the entity settles the dividend payable. 
IFRIC 17 is not expected to have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 18 “Transfers of Assets from Customers”
The IFRIC was issued in January 2009 and shall be applied for financial years beginning on or after 1 
July 2009. The interpretation clarifies the accounting for transfers of assets from customers, namely, 
the circumstances in which the definition of an asset is met; the recognition of the asset and the 
measurement of its cost on initial recognition; the identification of the separately identifiable services 
(one or more services in exchange for the transferred asset); the recognition of revenue, and the 
accounting for transfers of cash from customers. IFRIC 18 is not expected to have any impact on the 
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 19 “Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments”
The IFRIC was issued in November 2009 and shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
July 2010. The interpretation clarifies the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs) when an entity renegotiates the terms of a financial liability with its creditor and the creditor 
agrees to accept the entity’s shares or other equity instruments to settle the financial liability fully or 
partially. IFRIC 19 is not expected to have any impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Improvements to IFRSs
In April 2009 and May 2010 IASB issued further amendments to some of the standards and interpretations, 
primarily with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. These amendments cover a number 
of standards and interpretations issued by IASB and IFRIC and become effective in future annual periods.

Management anticipates that once adopted these amendments will have no significant effect on the 
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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5. Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation of uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which have been described in Note 3, management 
is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant, including,  
but not limited to, the uncertainties and ambiguities of the Russian legal and taxation systems and 
the difficulties in securing contractual rights as defined in contracts. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only 
that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and 
future periods.

Significant estimates and assumptions
Inventory valuation
Management reviews the inventory balances to determine if inventories can be sold at amounts greater 
than or equal to their carrying amounts plus costs to sell. This review includes identification of slow 
moving inventories, obsolete inventories and partially or fully damaged inventories. The identification 
process includes historical performance of the inventory, current operational plans for the inventory 
as well as industry and customer specific trends. Damaged stock is either provided for or written off 
depending on the extent of damage. Management makes a provision allowance for any items considered 
to be obsolete. The allowance represents the difference between the cost of inventory and its estimated 
net realizable value.

The net realizable value allowance is calculated using the following methodology:

(a) Stock held for resale – comparison of expected selling price versus the carrying value on a stock 
keeping unit basis;

(b) Damaged goods – examination of historical data relating to discounts associated with damaged 
goods and comparison to book value at the balance sheet date;

(c) Stock held at service centers – an allowance is applied based on management estimate of the 
carrying value of the inventory;

(d)  Additional allowance is accrued for if there is actual evidence of a decline in selling prices after the end of 
the reporting period to the extent that such decline confirms conditions existing at the end of the period.

If actual results differ from management’s expectations with respect to the selling of inventories at 
amounts equal to or less than their carrying amounts, management would be required to adjust the 
carrying amount of inventories.

Tax and customs provisions and contingencies
The Group is subject to various taxes arising in the Russian Federation. The majority of its merchandise 
is imported into Russia and is therefore subject to the Russian customs regulations. Significant 
judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes and other taxes. The Group 
recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether it is probable additional 
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that 
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the amount of tax and tax provision in the period 
in which such determination is made.
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The Group obtains various types of supplier bonuses. Current Russian tax legislation is unclear if the 
amount of VAT refund relating to goods purchased should be decrease by the amount of VAT on such 
allowances. The Group believes that its interpretation of the current tax legislation is appropriate 
and no additional tax liabilities arise in respect of supplier bonuses. Further Group position on this 
matter will depend on the court practice and amendments of the legislation related to bonuses from 
suppliers.

Recovery of deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences as management believes there 
will be sufficient future taxable profits to utilize those temporary differences.

Share-based payments
The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is based on the Group’s estimate of the number 
of equity instruments that will eventually vest and other estimates outlined in Note 28.

Useful life of property, plant and equipment
Trade equipment is depreciated over the estimated useful life specified in Note 3 above. The estimated 
useful life is adjusted when there is a plan to fully renovate the store in the near future, in which case 
carrying value of related trade equipment is depreciated over the period of time up to the planned 
renovation work.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The determination of impairment of property, plant and equipment involves the use of estimates that 
include, but are not limited, to the cause, timing and amount of impairment. Impairment is based on 
a large number of factors, such as changes in current competitive conditions, expectations of growth 
in the industry, increase of cost of capital, changes in the future availability of financing, technological 
obsolescence, current replacement cost and other changes in the circumstances that indicate that 
impairment exists. The determination of the recoverable amount of CGU involves the use of estimates 
by management. Methods used to determine the value in use include discounted cash flow-based 
methods, which require the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the CGU 
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. 
These estimates, including the methods used are described in Note 6.

Revenue attributed to loyalty program points
The Group estimates the fair value of points awarded under M.video Bonus loyalty program by applying 
“bonus ruble conversion rate” so that part of consideration allocated to the award credits represents 
their purchase capacity. Management also makes assumption about expected redemption rates. Points 
issued under the program expire with the passage of time; therefore such estimates are subject to 
significant uncertainty as at balance sheet date.

Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting policies
Recognition of revenue from sale of additional service agreements and associated costs
Revenue earned from the sale of additional service agreements is recognized on an ‘as earned’ basis 
with the unearned portion (if any) spread over the remaining term of the contracts to reflect the costs 
the Group expects to incur in performance of its contractual obligations.

With respect to sale of additional service agreements the Group operates under agreement concluded 
with a related party services provider which assumed substantially all of the Group’s obligations under all 
of the existing and future additional service agreements for a consideration based on a fixed proportion 
of fees charged to customers.

The fixed commission paid to a related party service centre to provide coverage for the Group’s obligations 
under the additional service agreements is recognized immediately as part of cost of sales. Other direct 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
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As at 31 December 2009 and 2008 there were no commitments for the acquisition of property, plant 
and equipment.

During the year 2009 the borrowing costs of 16 million RUB (2008: 8 million RUB) were capitalized as 
part of the cost of the Group’s property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation expenses and impairment loss have been included in “Selling, general and administrative 
expenses” (Note 24).

in millions of Russian Rubles

Build-
ings

lease-
hold 

improve-
ments

Con-
struc-
tion in 
prog-
ress

Trade 
equip-
ment

Secu-
rity 

equip-
ment

Other Total

Cost

As at 31 December 2007 2,288 1,314 6 601 319 688 5,216
Additions - - 2,322 - - - 2,322

Transfers 694 838 (2,270) 220 133 385 -

Disposals - - - (22) (4) (10) (36)

As at 31 December 2008 2,982 2,152 58 799 448 1,063 7,502

Additions - - 1,201 - - - 1,201

Transfers 273 397 (1,231) 130 120 311 -

Disposals - (15) (2) (78) (20) (47) (162)

As at 31 December 2009 3,255 2,534 26 851 548 1,327 8,541

Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss

As at 31 December 2007 121 133 - 190 137 217 798
Charge for the year 123 196 - 154 105 208 786

Disposals - - - (21) (4) (9) (34)

Impairment loss - 26 - 3 2 4 35

As at 31 December 2008 244 355 - 326 240 420 1,585

Charge for the year 155 323 - 154 122 284 1,038

Disposals - (15) - (73) (19) (45) (152)

(Reversal)/recognition of impairment loss, net - (8) - 1 - 3 (4)

As at 31 December 2009 399 655 - 408 343 662 2,467

net book value

As at 31 December 2008 2,738 1,797 58 473 208 643 5,917

As at 31 December 2009 2,856 1,879 26 443 205 665 6,074

costs associated with the sale of additional service agreements, such as sales bonuses paid to shop 
assistants are disclosed as part of selling, general and administrative expenses.

Supplier bonuses
The Group receives various types of bonuses from suppliers in the form of volume discounts and promotional, 
advertising and stocking fees. Management has concluded that substantially all supplier bonuses received 
or receivable by the Group should be treated as volume based, effectively reducing the cost of goods 
purchase from the suppliers, rather than a reimbursement of specific costs incurred by the Group.

6. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following:
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Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Due to the deterioration in the economic situation in the Russian Federation as a result of the recent 
turmoil in global capital and credit markets there have been certain indicators which required the 
Group to review its non-current assets for impairment at the balance sheet date. The Group performed 
an impairment test for all CGUs representing each city in which the Group’s stores are located. The 
recoverable amount of the CGUs has been determined based on value in use calculation using cash 
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the Board of Directors for the next year and 
projected growth rates for next four years with reference to gross regional domestic product for the 
regions where the Group operates and expected inflation for the Group’s merchandise. These growth 
rates are ranging from 4% to 8% and the expected long-term inflation is 5%. Cash flows beyond the 
five – year period were extrapolated using a long-term growth rate of 5%.

The pre-tax discount rate used in calculations for 2009 FY was 19.40% (21.56% in 2008). It is based 
on the Group’s weighted average cost of capital and reflects management’s estimates of the risks 
associated with the investments into the Group. In determining appropriate discount rate regard has 
been given to published analyst research with respect to the Group.

In accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” the recoverable amount of each individual CGU was 
compared with its carrying amount. No significant impairment loss has been recognized by the Group 
as a result of such review.

The management has concluded there are no reasonably possible changes in key assumptions which 
would cause the carrying amount of the Group’s assets to materially exceed its value in use.

7. Intangible assets

Intangible assets as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following:

in millions of Russian Rubles
software 
licenses Trade marks Total

Cost

As at 31 December 2007 65 1 66
Additions 323 11 334

As at 31 December 2008 388 12 400

Additions 232 - 232

As at 31 December 2009 620 12 632

Accumulated amortization

As at 31 December 2007 23 - 23
Charge for the year 41 1 42

As at 31 December 2008 64 1 65
Charge for the year 92 1 93

As at 31 December 2009 156 2 158

net book value

As at 31 December 2008 324 11 335

As at 31 December 2009 464 10 474

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009

During 2009 the Group incurred expenditures in the total amount of 232 million RUB (2008: 334 million 
RUB) which for the most part related to the implementation of additional functionality of the Group’s 
ERP system SAP SCM.
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Change in other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses includes non-cash transaction in the amount 
of 4 million RUB related to derecognition of receivables against previously recognized allowance  
(2008: 36 million RUB).

Amortization expense has been included in “Selling, general and administrative expenses” (Note 24).

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008 the Group had commitments for the acquisition of software licenses. 
Refer to Note 31 for further details.

8. Inventories

Inventories as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following:

For information relating to the cost of inventory recognized as an expense during the year ended 31 
December 2009 and 2008 refer to Note 23. As at 31 December 2009 the Group had no inventory 
pledged as collateral for Group’s borrowings or other liabilities (31 December 2008: 10,063 million 
RUB, refer to Notes 14, 16, 18).

9. Other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses

Other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted of the 
following:

For details relating to other accounts receivable from related parties refer to Note 29.

As at 31 December 2009 the Group had no past due but not impaired other accounts receivable from 
third parties (31 December 2008: nil).

Movement in the allowance for doubtful other accounts receivable is as follows:

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Goods for resale 17,110 15,544

Other inventories 10 79

Less: allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories (1,646) (1,508)

Total 15,474 14,115

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Advances paid to suppliers and prepaid expenses 954 1,870

Other accounts receivable from third parties 197 209

Advances paid to related parties 36 54

Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (120) (90)

Total 1,067 2,043

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Balance at the beginning of the year 90 36

Impairment losses recognized on other accounts receivables 50 90

Amounts written off as uncollectible (4) (36)

Amounts recovered during the year (16) -

Balance at the end of the year 120 90
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The other accounts receivable impaired as at 31 December 2009 were aged 120+ days (31 December 
2008: 120+ days).

Carrying value of other accounts receivable approximates their fair value.

10. VAt recoverable and other taxes receivable

VAT recoverable and other taxes receivable as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted of the 
following:

11. Short-term investments

Short-term investments as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following:

As at 31 December 2009 the Group had no short-term deposits in banks that should be classified 
other than cash and cash equivalents (refer to Note 12). Short-term deposits included in short-term 
investments as at 31 December 2008 were denominated in EUR. In 2009 the Group recognized foreign 
currency income of 148 million RUB representing an exchange difference arising from short-term bank 
deposits denominated in the currencies other than RUB (2008: 266 million RUB).

12. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following:

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008 the fair value of cash and cash equivalents equals to their carrying 
value.

Cash in transit represents cash collected from the Group’s stores and not yet deposited into the bank 
account at the year end. Short-term deposits earn interest ranging from 4.5% to 11.5% per annum 
(2008: from 0.1% to 7% per annum).

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

VAT recoverable 1,159 1,484

Other taxes receivable - 5

Total 1,159 1,489

in millions of Russian Rubles Interest rate Maturity 2009 2008

Short-term deposit in bank 8.5% March 2009 - 1,140

Short-term deposit in bank 4% March 2009 - 323

Short-term deposit in bank 8.2% February 2009 - 161

Total short-term deposits in banks - 1,624

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Short-term deposits 4,848 4,111

Cash at banks 786 660

Cash in transit 644 529

Petty cash and cash in stores 169 148

Total 6,447 5,448

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
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13. Share capital

Authorized and issued capital comprised of the following number of ordinary shares each having par 
value of 10 RUB per share:

During the years 2009 and 2008 there were no changes in the number of authorized and issued ordinary 
shares of the Company. All issued ordinary shares were fully paid.

Dividends
No dividends have been paid or declared by the Company during the years ended 31 December 2009 and 
2008. In accordance with the Russian legislation, dividends may only be declared to the shareholders 
of the Company from accumulated undistributed and unreserved earnings as shown in the Company’s 
Russian statutory financial statements. OJSC “Company M.video” had 611 million RUB (unaudited) of 
undistributed and unreserved earnings as at 31 December 2009 (31 December 2008: 154 million RUB, 
unaudited).

14. Long-term loans and borrowings

Long-term loans and borrowings as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following:

In 2009 the Group repaid all of its long-term bank loans carried as at 31 December 2008 ahead of their 
maturity dates.

15. Income tax

The Group’s income tax expense for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 was as follows:

in millions of Russian Rubles
Issued  

ordinary shares
Authorized 

ordinary shares 

As at 1 January 2008 179,768,227 209,768,227

As at 31 December 2008 179,768,227 209,768,227

As at 31 December 2009 179,768,227 209,768,227

in millions of Russian Rubles Interest rate Maturity 2009 2008

Secured third parties loan from bank (EUR) 11.25% March 2010 - 2,114

Secured third parties loan from bank (RUB) 13.75% March 2010 - 1,000

Total - 3,114

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Current tax expense (943) (1,358)

Deferred tax benefit 403 246

Total income tax expense (540) (1,112)

Current income tax recognized in equity (41) 7
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The tax effect on the major temporary differences that give rise to the deferred tax assets and liabilities 
as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 is presented below:

The statutory tax rate effective in the Russian Federation during 2008 was 24%. According to Federal 
Law No. 224-FZ dated 26 November 2008 the changes were made to the Tax Code of the Russian 
Federation and corporate profit tax rate was reduced to 20% effective from 1 January 2009. 

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008 the Group measured deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets 
using tax rate 20%, which is the rate expected to be applied in the period in which the liability is settled 
or the asset is realized.

The taxation charge for the year is different from that which would be obtained by applying the statutory 
income tax rate to the net profit before income tax. Below is a reconciliation of theoretical income tax 
expense at the statutory rate of 20% (31 December 2008: 24%) to the actual expense recorded in the 
Group’s consolidated statement of comprehensive income:

Taxable temporary differences in relation to investments in subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities 
have not been recognized as at 31 December 2009 amounted to 98 million RUB (31 December 2008: 
479 million RUB). No liability has been recognised in respect of these differences because the Group is 
in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that 
such differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Deferred tax assets

Supplier bonuses allocated to inventories 333 225

Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories 329 301

Deferred revenue 219 101

Difference in depreciable value of property, plant and equipment 126 58

Salary-related accruals 47 54

Accrued expenses 27 71

Allowance for doubtful debts 27 22

Accrual for unused vacation 19 23

Adjustment on unrealized profit 2 22

Other items 31 38

Total 1,160 915

Deferred tax liabilities

Difference in depreciable value of property, plant and equipment 276 214

Forward exchange contracts - 164

Difference in intangible assets - 63

Other items 12 5

Total 288 446

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Profit before income tax expense 1,323 2,368

Theoretical income tax expense at statutory rate of 20% (2008: 24%) (265) (568)

Adjustments due to:

Losses due to inventory shortages (26) (280)

Other non-deductible expenses, net (215) (170)

Income tax provisions (Note 31) (34) -

Reduction in tax rate (from 24% to 20%) - (94)

Income tax expense (540) (1,112)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009



ANNUAL REPORT
2009Switched-on!

74

16. Short-term loans and borrowings

Short-term loans and borrowings as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following:

17. trade accounts payable

Trade accounts payable as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following:

Trade accounts payable are non-interest bearing and are normalli settled between 30 and 90 days, depending 
on individual supplierterms. For terms and conditions relating to related party payables refer to Note 29.

18. Other payables and accrued expenses 

Other payables and accrued expenses as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following:

As at 31 December 2009 the Group had no letters of credit payable. As at 31 December 2008 the Group 
carried letters of credit payable to Uralsib bank issued by order of the Group for the benefit of suppliers 
of certain parcels of goods. Annual interest rate for these liabilities was 1.75%. Letters of credit payable 
were secured by the Group’s inventories in amount of 3,661 million RUB (refer to Note 8).

19. Other taxes payable

Other taxes payable as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following:

in millions of Russian Rubles Interest rate 2009 2008

Secured third parties credit facilities (EUR) 2.74% + EURIBOR (3m) - 1,624

Secured third parties credit facilities (EUR) 3.1% + EURIBOR (1m) - 1,242

Secured third parties credit facilities (EUR) 9.5% - 622

Secured third parties credit facilities (USD) 5% + USD LIBOR (3m) - 441

total principal amount of short-term loans - 3,929

Interest payable - 14

Total - 3,943

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Trade accounts payable to third parties 20,436 14,816

Trade accounts payable to related parties 59 62

Total 20,495 14,878

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Accrued salaries and bonuses 294 311

Accrued unused vacation 94 113

Accrued rent and utilities 43 120

Accrued consulting fees 29 74

Other current liabilities to related parties 10 32

Letters of credit payable - 508

Other payables and accrued expenses 97 151

Total 567 1,309

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Payroll taxes 84 79

VAT payable - 13

Other taxes payable 48 46

Total 132 138
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20. Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following:

Other programs represent primarily sales of gift cards to the Group’s customers.

21. Provisions

Provisions as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following:

The movement in provisions during the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

(i) The warranty provision in respect of additional service agreements represents management’s best 
estimate of the future outflow of economic benefits that will be required under the Group’s 2, 3 and 5 year 
additional service agreements. A Group entity sells the additional service agreements directly to customers, 
however, a back-to-back agreement entered into between the Group entity and a related party during the 
year ended 31 December 2007 transfers the obligations under the additional service agreement from the 
Group to the related party. For this reason an equal corresponding non-current and current asset has been 
recognized by the Group, and disclosed within other assets. The estimate has been made on the basis of 
historical warranty trends and may vary as a result of events affecting product quality.

(ii) The warranty provision in respect of repair of goods represents management’s best estimate of the 
future outflow of economic benefits that will be required to service goods sold for which there is no 
supplier service centre in the Russian Federation.

2009 2008

in millions of Russian Rubles

Customer 
loyalty program 
“M.video Bonus”

Other programs
Customer 

loyalty program 
“M.video Bonus”

Other programs

As at 1 January 113 392 - 305

Revenue deferred during the year 505 572 157 392

Revenue released to the consolidated statement of comprehen-
sive income

(96) (392) (44) (305)

As at 31 December 522 572 113 392

Non-current Current

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008 2009 2008

Warranty provision – in respect of additional service agreements 
(ASA) (i)

126 114 202 150

Warranty provision – repair of goods (ii) 3 5 9 10

Total 129 119 211 160

in millions of Russian Rubles Warranty – ASA Warranty –  
Repair of goods

Balance as at 1 January 2008 162 10

Additional provisions recognized 102 5

Balance as at 1 January 2009 264 15

Additional provisions recognized 64 (3)

Balance as at 31 December 2009 328 12

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
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22. Revenue

Revenue for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following:

Retail revenue for 2009 includes sales of ASA certificates of 1,914 million RUB (2008: 1,820 million RUB).

23. Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following:

24. Selling, general and administrative expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted 
of the following:

Payroll and related taxes include 540 million RUB contribution to the state pension fund (2008: 532 
million RUB) and social and medical insurance in the amount of 166 million RUB (2008: 162 million 
RUB).

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Retail revenue (including internet) 70,324 68,131

Wholesale revenue 2,173 3,350

Other 10 5

Total 72,507 71,486

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Cost of goods and services 58,505 56,409

Inventory losses 302 711

Change in allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories 138 531

Supplier bonuses (4,798) (4,041)

Total 54,147 53,610

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Payroll and related taxes 4,292 4,386

Lease expenses, net of income from sublease 3,310 3,041

Advertising and promotional expenses, net 2,493 2,462

Depreciation, amortization and impairment loss 1,127 863

Transportation 933 1,081

Warehouse services 860 1,090

Utilities expense 617 274

Security 454 463

Service centre 427 356

Repairs and maintenance 386 266

Bank charges 347 267

Taxes other than income tax 319 91

Legal, audit and consulting expenses 221 446

Communication 201 151

Packaging and raw materials 176 203

Office expenses 106 71

Other 346 500

Total 16,615 16,011
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25. Other operating income

Other operating income for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 includes commissions 
received from banks on loans provided to customers, goods delivery, income from leases and other 
items. Other operating income for the year ended 31 December 2009 included foreign currency income 
of 102 million RUB (31 December 2008: 153 million RUB).

26. Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December 2009 consisted of insignificant items.

27. Finance Costs, Net

Net amount of finance costs for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 consisted of the 
following:

Loss on exchange difference from foreign currency borrowings for the year ended 31 December 2009 
is shown net of a gain of 170 million RUB earned on foreign currency deposits which were held by the 
Group to offset the risks associated with its foreign currency loans.

28. Share-Based Payments

Employee share option plan
The Group has an ownership-based compensation scheme for executives and senior employees of the 
Group. In accordance with the provisions of the plan, as approved by the Board of Directors at a Board 
meeting held on 28 June 2007, 1,498,682 of the Company’s existing ordinary shares were set aside by 
the controlling shareholder. Executives and senior employees (35 persons in total) have been granted 
the right to purchase ordinary shares at an exercise price of 10 RUB per ordinary share. Before the 
options are exercised, dividends are accrued to current shareholders.

Each employee share option allows the recipient to purchase one ordinary share of OJSC “Company M.
video” from M.video Investment Ltd. (BVI). The proceeds from the purchase is payable to the existing 
shareholder. No amounts are paid or payable by the recipient on receipt of the option. The options carry 
neither rights to dividends nor voting rights. Employees must be employed at the vesting date to exercise 
his or her right unless the Board of Directors waives this condition. Options may be exercised within 30 
days from the date of vesting. The number of options granted per employee has been determined by 
the Chief Executive Officer and approved by the Board of Directors.

Long-term incentive plan – Series one
Under the series one of the Company’s long-term incentive plan (“LTIP”) as at 1 October 2007 35 persons 
became members of the plan and 622,500 shares were committed, which represented 42% of the 
shares designated for the LTIP. In 2009 prior to the second vesting date (1 April 2009), 39,000 shares 
were forfeited (2008: 123,000 forfeited). Of the remaining outstanding granted shares, 150,500 shares 

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Interest expense on bank loans 368 631

Exchange difference from foreign currency borrowings, net 290 887

Loss/(gain) on realized forward contracts 263 (148)

Coupon yield expense on corporate bonds - 10

Change in fair value of forward contracts (62) (789)

Interest income (65) (226)

Total 794 365

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
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which vested on 1 April 2009 (tranche two) were exercised (2008: 166,500). The additional 40,000 
granted shares were forfeited before 31 December 2009 (2008: 10,000).

Below is the summary of the arrangements that were in existence as at 31 December 2009:

The weighted average fair value of the share options granted under LTIP Series one as at 31 December 
2009 is 165.66 RUB (2008: 165.17 RUB). Options were priced using the Black Scholes pricing model. 
Where relevant, the model has reflected management’s best estimate of the future volatility of the 
Company’s share price, expected dividend yield, risk-free interest rates and expected staff turnover. 
Management draws upon a variety of external sources to aid in the determination of the appropriate 
data to use in such situations.

The expected volatility was determined based on the ending weekly share price for the period 1 November 
2007 (listing date) to 31 December 2007. The expected volatility is equal to the historical volatility due 
to the brief history of trading activity and lack of comparable industry data.

An expense of 3 million RUB has been recognized during the year ended 31 December 2009 in respect 
of share-based payments (31 December 2008: 37 million RUB). This expense relates to equity-settled 
share-based payments. The expense has been disclosed within selling, general and administrative 
expense in the line item “payroll and related taxes” (Note 24). The corresponding entry has been reflected 
within retained earnings.

Long-term incentive plan – Series two
As at 31 March 2008 the Board of Directors approved the adoption of Series two of the LTIP for selected 
members of the Group’s management team. As at 1 April 2008 46 persons became members of the plan 
and 756,000 of the shares designated for the LTIP were committed. This allocation forms part of the 
initial 1,498,682 of the Company’s existing shares which were set aside prior to the Initial Public Offering. 
Under the terms of Series two of the LTIP, the vesting period is three years with 33.33% of the shares 
to vest each April following the grant date. Participants are able to exercise their 33.33% entitlement 
within 30 days of each vesting period by paying 10 RUB per share to the operator of the program after 
the vesting date. The participant must be employed at the anniversary date to exercise his or her right 
unless the Board of Directors waives this condition.

In 2009 after the first vesting date (1 April 2009), 51,000 shares were forfeited. Of the remaining 
606,000 granted shares, 210,000 shares which vested on 1 April 2009 were exercised. Then additional 
112,000 granted shares were forfeited before 31 December 2009.

Option series Number  
of options Grant date Vesting 

date Expiry date Exercise 
price (RUB)

Fair value 
at grant 

date
(RUB)

Issued 1 October 2007 93,500 1 October 2007 1 April 2010 30 April 2010 10 165.66

Inputs into the model
lTIP 1 share op-
tions vested on 

1 April 2010

Grant date share price, RUB 173.40

Exercise price, RUB 10

Expected volatility 20.68%

Option life (years) 2.50

Dividend yield 0%

Risk-free interest rate 10%



mvideo.ru

79

Below is the summary of the arrangements that were in existence as at 31 December 2009:

The weighted average fair value of the share options granted under LTIP Series two as at 31 December 
2009 was 170.04 RUB (31 December 2008 169.45 RUB). Options were priced using the Black-Scholes 
pricing model.

The expected volatility was determined based on the ending weekly share price for the period 1 November 
2007 (listing date) to 1 April 2008. The expected volatility is equal to the historical volatility due to the 
brief history of trading activity and lack of comparable industry data.

An expense of 20 million RUB has been recognized during the year ended 31 December 2009 in 
respect of share-based payments under the Company’s LTIP Series two (2008: 50 million RUB). This 
expense relates to equity-settled share-based payments and has been included into selling, general and 
administrative expense in the line item “payroll and related taxes” (Note 24).

Long-term incentive plan – Series three
On 9 December 2009 the Board of Directors approved the adoption of Series three of the LTIP for 
selected members of the Group’s management team. 56 persons became members of the plan and 
2,670,000 of the shares were committed for the LTIP Series three. The shares will be granted by the 
Group to the participants of the plan at the appropriate vesting date provided that the participants are 
employed to exercise his or her right unless the Board of Directors waives this condition.

Below is the summary of the arrangements that were in existence as at 31 December 2009:

option series two Number  
of options Grant date Vesting 

date Expiry date Exercise 
price (RUB)

Fair value 
at grant 

date (RUB)

Issued 1 April 2008 142,000 1 April 2008 1 April 2010 30 April 2010 10 169.69

Issued 1 April 2008 142,000 1 April 2008 1 April 2011 30 April 2011 10 170.39

Inputs into the model
lTIP 2 share op-
tions vesting on 

1 April 2010

lTIP 2 share op-
tions vesting on 

1 April 2011

Grant date share price, RUB 177.45 177.45

Exercise price, RUB 10 10

Expected volatility 26.85% 26.85%

Option life years 2 3

Dividend yield 0% 0%

Risk-free interest rate 10% 10%

Option Series three Number  
of options Grant date Vesting 

date Expiry date Exercise 
price (RUB)

Fair value 
at grant 

date (RUB)

Issued 9 December 2009 1,275,000 9 Dec 2009 1 April 2013 30 April 2013 - 118.47

Issued 9 December 2009 1,395,000 9 Dec 2009 1 April 2015 30 April 2015 - 118.49

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009



ANNUAL REPORT
2009Switched-on!

80

The weighted average fair value of the share options granted under LTIP Series three as at 31 December 
2009 was 118.48 RUB. Options were priced using the Black-Scholes pricing model.

The expected volatility was determined based on the ending weekly share price for the period 1 November 
2007 (listing date) to 9 December 2009. The expected volatility is equal to the historical volatility due 
to the brief history of trading activity and lack of comparable industry data.

An expense of 5 million RUB has been recognized during the year ended 31 December 2009 in respect 
of share-based payments under the Company’s LTIP Series three. This expense relates to equity-settled 
share-based payments and has been included into selling, general and administrative expense in the 
line item “payroll and related taxes” (Note 24). 

The following reconciles the outstanding share options granted under the employee share plan at the 
beginning and end of the financial year 2009:

Balance at the end of the financial year
The share options granted under LTIP Series one and two outstanding at the end of the financial year 
2009 have an exercise price of 10 RUB (2008: 10 RUB). 

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the share options granted under LTIP of all three 
Series outstanding at 31 December 2009 is 1,400 days (2008: 396 days).

Inputs into the model
lTIP 3 share op-
tions vesting on 

1 April 2013

lTIP 3 share op-
tions vesting on 

1 April 2015

Grant date share price, RUB 122.27 122.27

Exercise price, RUB 0 0

Expected volatility 123.55% 123.55%

Option life years 3 5

Dividend yield 0% 0%

Risk-free interest rate 7.5% 7.5%

lTIP Series 1 lTIP Series 2 lTIP Series 3

Number of 
options

Weighted 
average 
exercise 

price (RUB)

Number of 
options

Weighted 
average 
exercise 

price (RUB)

Number of 
options

Weighted 
average 
exercise 

price (RUB)

Balance as at 1 January 2008 622,500 10 - - -

Granted during the period - - 756,000 10 - -

Forfeited during the period (133,000) 10 (99,000) 10 - -

Exercised during the period (166,500) 10 - - - -

Balance as at 31 December 2008 323,000 10 657,000 10 - -

Exercisable at the end of the financial year - - - - - -

Balance as at 1 January 2009 323,000 10 657,000 10 - -

Granted during the period - - - - 2,670,000 -

Forfeited during the period (79,000) 10 (163,000) 10 - -

Exercised during the period (150,500) 10 (210,000) 10 - -

Balance as at 31 December 2009 93,500 10 284,000 10 2,670,000 -

Exercisable at the end of the financial year - - - - - -
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29. Related Parties

Related parties include shareholders, key management, entities under common ownership and control, 
and entities over which the Group has significant influence.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of OJSC “Company M.video” and 
its subsidiaries which are listed in Note 1. Intra-group balances and transactions are not presented for 
purposes of this disclosure.

The following table provides the total amount of transactions, which have been entered into with 
related parties for the relevant financial year (for information regarding outstanding balances as at 31 
December 2009 and 2008, also refer to Notes 9, 17 and 18):

The nature of transactions with related parties is as follows:

°  LLC “Avto-Express” – provides a car leasing service to the Group and logistic services;

°  LLC “Avtoritet” – provides the brand name “Smart-on” to the Group under a license agreement and 
two trading premises in Moscow under a lease agreement. In 2009 the Group also acquired a building 
from LLC “Avtoritet” with the intention of using this building in its retail operations; LLC “Private 
Security Agency Bars – SB” – provides store and head office security services;

°  LLC “Bars” – provides courier services to the Group;

°   LLC “Company Profi Center” – provides servicing of inventories;

°   LLC “MV. Stil” – provides rent services.

°   LLC “Noviy Format” – for the periods ended 31 December 2008 and 2009 the transaction related to 
purchase of the buildings;

2009 2009 31 December 2009 2008 2008 31 December 2008

in millions of Russian 
Rubles

Sales to 
related 
parties

Purchas-
es from 
related 
parties

Amounts 
owed by 
related 
parties

Amounts 
owed to 
related 
parties

Sales to 
related 
parties

Purchas-
es from 
related 
parties

Amounts 
owed by 
related 
parties

Amounts 
owed to 
related 
parties

Entities under common 
сontrol

LLC “Avto-Express” - 142 - 13 - 144 - 7

LLC “Avtoritet” 15 192 3 8 1 52 - 3

LLC “Bars” - - - - - 11 - -

LLC “Company Profi Center” - 6 - - - 7 - -

LLC “MV. Stil” 1 - - - 1 - - -

LLC “Noviy Format” - 325 - - - 404 - 20

LLC “Private Security Agency 
Bars-SB”

2 147 1 - 2 134 4 -

Transservice Group of 
Companies, LLC “Technovideo 
Service”, LLC “Transservice-95”

21 261 32 12 28 268 50 35

LLC “Universal Service” - 330 - 36 - 366 - 29

TOTAl 39 1,403 36 69 32 1,386 54 94

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
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°  Transservice Group of Companies – provides after sale and other servicing of the Group’s 
merchandise;

°  LLC “Universal Service” – provides after sale servicing and other related servicing of merchandize 
sold in connection with additional service agreements;

The ultimate parent entity
M.video Investment Ltd. (BVI) is the ultimate shareholder of the Group.

There were no transactions between the Group and the ultimate parent during the year ended 31 
December 2009 and 2008.

Immediate parent entity
Svece Ltd owns 69.9626% of the ordinary shares of OJSC “Company M.video” as at 31 December 2009 
and 2008.

Refer to Note 1 for additional information on the ultimate controlling party of the Group and the share-
based payment transactions involving the immediate parent entity.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Related parties may enter into transactions, which unrelated parties might not, and transactions 
between related parties may not be effected on the same terms, conditions and amounts as transactions 
between unrelated parties. Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured and settlement occurs 
in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party accounts receivable 
or payables. For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group has not recorded any impairment 
of accounts receivable relating to amounts owed by related parties (2008: nil). This assessment is 
undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the 
market in which the related party operates.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year was as 
follows:

As at 31 December 2009 the Group’s payable to key management personnel amounted to 35 million 
RUB (2008: 32 mln RUB).

The number of key management positions was 15 in 2009 (2008: 16).

The Group did not provide any material post employment, termination, or other long-term benefits to 
key management personnel during the period other than contributions to state pension fund and the 
social funds as a part of payments of unified social tax on salaries and bonuses. Unified social tax paid 
relating to compensation of key management personnel amounted to 3 million RUB and 4 million RUB 
respectively for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 and is included in the amounts stated 
above.

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Short-term benefits* 173 143

Share-based payments 1 35

Total 174 178

*Short-term benefits include salaries, bonuses, annual leave, 
medical and insurance expenses.
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30. Operating lease arrangements

The Group has entered into commercial leases for the rental of retail properties, warehouses and 
office space. These leases have terms ranging between 1 and 14 years. The majority of the lease 
contracts contain escalation clauses. Certain lease contracts stipulate terms requiring the Group to pay 
the higher of minimum lease payments or a percentage of revenue. The amounts paid in excess of the 
minimum lease payments are disclosed as contingent rentals below. The Group does not have an option 
to purchase the leased premises at the expiration of the lease period.

Payments recognized as an expense

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments
Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancelable operating leases for premises occupied as at 
31 December 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Future minimum rentals payable under committed, non-cancelable future store operating leases for 
premises as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Future minimum rental payments will be subject to VAT.

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Minimum lease payments 3,288 3,101

Contingent rentals 22 -

Total 3,310 3,101

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Within one year 3,707 3,471

After one year but not more than five years 15,923 12,608

More than five years 6,127 5,467

25,757 21,546

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Within one year 210 470

After one year but not more than five years 2,441 1,409

More than five years 2,577 2,354

Total 5,228 4,233

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
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31. Commitments and contingencies

Operating environment
The Group sells products that are sensitive to changes in general economic conditions that impact 
consumer spending. Future economic conditions and other factors, including consumer confidence, 
employment levels, interest rates, consumer debt levels and availability of consumer credit could reduce 
consumer spending or change consumer purchasing habits. A general slowdown in the Russian economy 
or in the global economy, or an uncertain economic outlook, could adversely affect consumer spending 
habits and the Group’s operating results.

The Russian economy is vulnerable to market downturns and economic slowdowns elsewhere in the world. 
The ongoing global financial crisis has resulted in capital markets instability, significant deterioration of 
liquidity in the banking sector, and tighter credit conditions within Russia. While the Russian Government 
has introduced a range of stabilization measures aimed at providing liquidity and supporting refinancing 
of foreign debt for Russian banks and companies, there continues to be uncertainty regarding the 
access to capital and cost of capital for the Group and its counterparties, which could affect the Group’s 
financial position, results of operations and business prospects. Although any further deterioration in 
the areas described above could negatively affect the Group’s results and financial position in a manner 
not currently determinable, the management believes it is taking appropriate measures to support the 
sustainability of the Group’s business in the current circumstances.

Russian Federation tax and regulatory environment
The government of the Russian Federation continues to reform the business and commercial 
infrastructure in its transaction to a market economy. As a result, laws and regulations affecting 
business continue to change rapidly. These changes are characterized by unclear wording which leads 
to, different interpretations and arbitrary application by the authorities. Management’s interpretation 
of such legislation as applied to the activity of the Group may be challenged by the relevant regional 
and federal authorities. Recent events within the Russian Federation suggest that the tax authorities 
are taking a more assertive position in their interpretation of the legislation and assessments and as 
a result, it is possible that transactions and activities that have not been challenged in the past may 
be challenged. It is therefore possible that significant additional taxes, penalties and interest may be 
assessed. Fiscal periods remain open to tax audit by the authorities in respect of taxes for three calendar 
years preceding the year of tax audit. Under certain circumstances reviews may cover longer periods. 
Management believes that it has accrued for all taxes that are applicable. Where uncertainty exists, the 
Group has accrued tax liabilities as management’s best estimate of the probable outflow of resources 
which will be required to settle such liabilities. Management believes that it has provided adequately for 
tax liabilities based on its interpretations of tax legislation. However, the relevant authorities may have 
differing interpretations, and the effects could be significant.

As at 31 December 2007 management recorded a provision of 87 million RUB for income tax and 7 
million RUB for other tax contingencies in the consolidated financial statements of which 32 million RUB 
was reversed in 2009 due to expiration of the statutory limitation period (2008: nil). In 2009 the Group 
recognized an additional provision of 66 million RUB relating to tax contingencies (2008: nil).

The Group has identified other possible tax contingencies in respect of issues unrelated to customs (as 
discussed below) for the three-year period ended 31 December 2009. Management has estimated that 
possible exposure in relation to such tax risks, if they were to materialize, would not exceed twice the 
amount of the Group’s profit before income tax expense.

Customs
As is common in the business, the Group or an affiliated party negotiates and confirms with overseas 
representatives of foreign manufacturers, the quantity, price and attributes of the foreign manufactured 
goods, but the goods may be procured through parties both affiliated and unaffiliated with the Group.
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Subject to the above, during the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group purchased a significant 
portion of its foreign manufactured goods on the territory of the Russian Federation from Russian legal 
entities, including Russian wholesalers or resellers, which may or may not have imported the goods 
into Russia directly. As the Group was not involved in clearing customs for the goods purchased on the 
territory of Russia, management can not be certain that the entities which imported the goods into 
Russia were in full compliance with the applicable regulations of the Russian customs code.

As described above in Russian Federation tax and regulatory environment section, the relevant authorities 
may take a more assertive position in their interpretation of the applicable laws. Under Russian law a 
company in possession of goods that were imported with proven violations of the customs law may be 
subject to significant administrative or civil penalties and/or confiscation of the goods, if it was involved 
in, aware of, or should have known that violation of the customs code were occurring. To date, the Group 
has not been subject to any notification of violations of the customs code.

Management believes that the Group entities were acting in compliance with all applicable tax and legal 
requirements in respect of imported products, were not involved, not aware and could not be expected 
to know of any significant violations of the applicable customs code by the Russian wholesalers or 
resellers. Accordingly, management did not recognize any provisions in respect of such contingencies 
in these consolidated financial statements and determined that with current limitations in access to 
customs clearance documents it is not practicable to estimate the likely potential financial effect, if any, 
of such contingent liabilities.

License Agreements
As at 31 December 2009 the Group had finished the fourth year of a five-year contract with Microsoft 
for Microsoft Office software right. The contract is structured in a way that allows the Group to prepay 
one year at a time. The total outstanding contractual commitment for the year ending 31 December 
2010 including license fees and annual support is 17.5 million RUB.

Litigation
In the normal course of business, the Group is subject to proceedings, lawsuits, and other claims. While 
such matters are subject to other uncertainties, and outcomes are not predictable with assurance, the 
management of the Group believes that any financial impact arising from these matters would not be 
material to its financial position or annual operating results.

Environmental matters
The enforcement of environmental regulation in the Russian Federation is evolving and the enforcement 
posture of government authorities is continually being reconsidered. The Group periodically evaluates 
its obligations under environmental obligations. In the current enforcement climate under existing 
legislation, management believes that there are no significant liabilities for environmental matters.

Guarantees
The Group had no outstanding guarantees issued by the Group entities or other parties for the benefit 
of the Group entities as at 31 December 2009 and 2008.

32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Generally the Group’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, 
trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Group’s 
operations. The Group has trade and other receivables and cash and short-term deposits that arrive 
directly from its operations. The Group also enters into derivative transactions.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, 
credit risk and liquidity risk.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
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The Group’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Group’s senior 
management provides assurance to the Group’s Board of Directors that the Group’s financial risk-
taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are 
identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group’s policies. All derivative activities 
for risk management purposes are carried out by specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, 
experience and supervision.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are 
summarized below.

Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern 
while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. No 
changes were made in objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2009 and 
2008.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents (Note 12), short-term investments 
(Note 11) and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, additional 
paid in capital and retained earnings.

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management program is to maximize shareholder value 
while minimizing the risks associated with the loan portfolio. The consumer electronics business is a 
cyclical business and as such requires short-term fluctuations in capital to purchase goods to satisfy 
the seasonal demand. The Group uses a combination of long-term loans, short-term loans and supplier 
credit terms to meet the seasonal capital needs. The store expansion program adds to the capital needs 
as the capital and pre-opening costs associated with the new stores puts additional pressure on the 
Group’s financial resources. While the Group has not established any formal policies regarding debt to 
equity proportions the Group reviews the capital needs of the Group periodically to determine actions 
to balance its overall capital structure through shareholders’ capital contributions or new share issues, 
return of capital to shareholders as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

Significant accounting policies
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, 
the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of 
each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 3 to the 
consolidated financial statements.

Categories of financial instruments
The carrying values of financial assets and liabilities grouped by each category of financial instruments 
were as follows:

in millions of Russian Rubles 2009 2008

Financial assets

Fair value through profit or loss - 821

Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) 6,628 7,329

Financial liabilities

Liabilities carried at amortized cost 21,062 23,244
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Foreign currency risk management
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Management believes that this risk is not 
significant because at 31 December 2009 the Group has neither material assets or liabilities denominated 
in foreign currencies on its consolidated balance sheet nor any transactional currency exposure relating 
to revenue as sales occur on the territory of the Russian Federation and are denominated in RUB.

Interest rate risk management
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. Management believes that this risk is not significant 
because as at 31 December 2009 the Group does not have any borrowings or other financial liabilities 
bearing floating interest rates.

Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty may default on its contractual obligations resulting in 
financial loss to the Group. Financial assets which are potentially subject the Group to credit risk consist 
primarily of trade and other receivables as well as cash in current and deposit accounts with banks and 
other financial institutions.

The Group trades only with recognized, creditworthy third parties which are registered in the Russian 
Federation. The policy is that all customers which are granted credit terms have a history of purchases 
from the Group, employ individuals who are known to the Group and can demonstrate they have the 
financial resources to cover their limits. The Group also requires these customers to provide certain 
documents such as incorporation documents and financial statements.

The Group’s sales and credit concentration is not significant since neither revenue nor trade accounts 
receivable from any individual customer exceeds 5% of the Group’s consolidated revenues and trade 
accounts receivable, respectively. Any defaults in payments or a material reduction in purchases made 
by any individual customer will not have significant negative impact on the Group’s financial condition, 
results of its operations and liquidity.

The credit risk on liquid funds (see the table below) is managed by Group treasury. The management 
believes that credit risk on investments of surplus funds is limited as the counterparties are financial 
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

The table below shows the balances that the Group has with 3 of its major counterparties as at the 
balance sheet date:

in millions of Russian Rubles Carrying amount

Counterparty Currency Rating 2009 2008

Gazprombank EUR,USD,RUB BB 3,648 3,994

Credit Bank of Moscow RUB,USD BBB- 1,200 441

Uralsib EUR BB+ - 1,300

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
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Fair value of financial instruments
Management consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities reflected 
in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2009 and 2008 approximate their fair 
values.

33.Subsequent Events

On 12 May 2010 the Board of Directors made a recommendation to approve dividends of 413 million 
RUB (being 2.3 RUB per share) in respect of 2009. The final approval of this dividend payment is expected 
at the general shareholders’ meeting which is scheduled for June 2010.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the consolidated financial statements, which is net 
of impairment losses, represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008 the Group does not have financial guarantees provided on behalf of 
other entities. There were no other concentrations of credit risk as at 31 December 2009.

Liquidity risk management
The Group’s treasury monitors the risk of a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. 
This tool considers the maturity of both its financial investments and financial assets (e.g. accounts 
receivable, other financial assets) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank 
overdrafts and bank loans. Each year the Group analyzes its funding needs and anticipated cash flows, 
so that it can determine its funding obligations. The seasonality of the business, the store expansion 
plan and the anticipated working capital requirements form the basis of the evaluation. When necessary 
the Group uses long-term instruments (loans and borrowings) to cover its base liquidity needs. The 
Group uses short-term loans and bank overdrafts to cover seasonality needs. Every quarter the Group 
updates its liquidity needs and secures facilities with several banks to ensure that the Group has a 
sufficient amount of approved undrawn borrowing facilities. As at 31 December 2009, the Group had 
not obtained borrowing facilities (31 December 2008: 9,833 million RUB of uncommitted standby 
borrowing facilities). The Group can formally apply for additional tranches of debt and the bank will 
provide additional funding provided all conditions precedent had been met.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at 31 December 
2009 and 2008 based on contractual undiscounted payments in millions of Russian Rubles:

31 December 2009 less than  
3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Total

Trade accounts payable 20,495 - - 20,495

Other accounts payable and accrued expenses 567 - - 567

Total 21,062 - - 21,062

31 December 2008 less than  
3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Total

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 2,729 1,283 3,565 7,577

Trade accounts payable 14,878 - - 14,878

Other accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,309 - - 1,309

Total 18,916 1,283 3,565 23,764
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